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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am glad to present to the shareholders the
annual report of Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021.

For the year under review, the outsourced business process
management for electronic gaming machines in Macau was worsened
by the prevalence of COVID pandemic.

Goldladen carbon processing business has become the core business
of the Group during the year and the trend of the gold price is in
line with the Group’s profitability. The Group, has a production line in
Yunnan province, PRC, for the extraction of gold and other precious
metals from gold-laden carbon.

Looking ahead, with the world-wide increasing use of the vaccines
starting from the beginning of 2021, the pandemic situation will be
largely improved. The economy is expected to gradually recover its
growth in 2021. Benefiting from a rebound in the economy from the
low, we expect the gold price will increase further. The geopolitical
uncertainties brought about by the prolonged China-western trade
and culture frictions as well as the on-going inflation will continue to
drive gold as a safe-haven asset throughout 2021. As such, we would
expect gold processing business to generate the increasing return to
the Group. As a long term strategy, the Company will closely review
our management and cost structure so as to improve efficiency and
reduce expenses where possible.

In addition to the Group’s commitment to the development of its
core gold processing business, the Board seeks to open up such
different revenue channels as trading in the gold and other precious
metals and to achieve sustainable growth in the next few years and
to elevate itself to be a major player in high growth industries and
markets. In particular, the Group will leverage on its experience and
know-how in the existing businesses to capture market opportunities
in technology-related sectors. The Company wishes to form strategic
partnerships with major players in the region, exploiting its strong
business networks and grow in markets of this strategic fit to deliver
strong and sustainable returns to the shareholders of the Company.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our appreciation to my
fellow directors and staffs for their diligence and contributions to the
Group in the past year, to the shareholders and business partners for
their understanding and support. With their continuous support and
contributions, we will strive to stimulate corporate growth and deliver
high returns to the Company and shareholders as a whole.

DING Lei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance of the Group

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$175.2 million for
the financial year ended 31 March 2021 (“FY2021” or the “Year”),
versus approximately HK$91.4 million in the financial year ended 31
March 2020 (“FY2020"), an increase of approximately HK$83.8 million.
During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of processing gold-laden carbon and sale of gold and other precious
metals, outsourced business process management and money
lending business.

Our business scope has changed significantly this year due to the
rapid development of the gold-laden carbon processing business,
such that the contribution from outsourced business processing
management segment has reduced.

Outsourced Business Process Management

The Outsourced Business Process Management business contributed
19.2% of the Group’s revenue during the Year, and revenue generated
from the Outsourced Business Process Management decreased by
approximately 60.2% from approximately HK$84.5 million in FY2020
to approximately HK$33.6 million in FY2021. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the adverse impact on Macau gaming industry caused
by prevalence of Coronavirus pandemic. The loss from this captioned
segment during the Year was approximately HK$9.4 million compared
with loss of approximately HK$4.4 million during FY2020 which was
mainly due to the decrease in gross revenue.

Money Lending Business

During the Year, revenue generated from money lending business
was approximately HK$6.5 million with profit of approximately HK$3.4
million (FY2020: approximately HK$4.9 million, profit of approximately
HK$2.1 million).

Gold-laden Carbon Processing Business

The Group has diversified and developed its business into the gold-
laden carbon processing and the sale of gold and other precious
metals. The Board seeks to open up the new procurement and
revenue channel in gold-laden carbon processing market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJEFI_J‘HH& *ﬁ

The Group has a production line in Yunnan province, PRC, for the
extraction of gold and other precious metals from gold-laden carbon.
The Group purchases the gold-laden carbon from suppliers including
mining enterprises and traders. At the Group’s production line, gold
and other precious metals are extracted from the gold-laden carbon
using processes such as desorption and electrodeposition. The
extracted gold and other precious metals will be sold to buyers and
dealers in the PRC.

During the Year, revenue generated from gold-laden carbon
processing business was approximately HK$135.1 million with profit of
approximately HK$2.4 million (FY2020: approximately HK$2.1 million,
loss of approximately HK$1,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During FY2021, the Outsourced Business Process Management
business contributed approximately 19.2% (FY2020: approximately
92.4%) of the Group’s total revenue. The revenue derived from this
business segment was approximately HK$33.6 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 60.2% (FY2020: approximately HK$84.5
million). The revenue derived from the money lending business
segment was approximately HK$6.5 million (FY2020: approximately
HK$4.9 million). The revenue derived from the gold-laden carbon
processing business was approximately HK$135.1 million, which
contributed approximately 77.1% of the Group’s total revenue (FY2020:
approximately HK$2.1 million). As a result of the above, for FY2021,
the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$175.2 million
(FY2020: approximately HK$91.4 million), representing an increase of
approximately 91.7%.

The Group reported a net loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$10.5 million for FY2021 (FY2020: approximately
HK$11.9 million). The decrease in net loss was mainly caused by the
following factors:

(i) the decrease in the depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$2,355,000 as compared to the
same period in last year;

(if) the increase in the gold-laden carbon processing business’s
revenue due to recognition of the revenue for the full financial
year of 2021 as the gold-laden carbon processing business
commenced in March 2020; and

(i)  the decrease in the administrative and other operating
expenses, from approximately HK$34.7 million in FY2020 to
approximately HK$26 million in FY2021 due to the cost control
measures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$32.3 million.

During the Year, the Group had a loan agreement with an independent
third party for an unsecured and unguaranteed loan amounted to
HK$13.6 million and interest rate at 14.5% per annum, and repayable
on 5 September 2020. The loan extension is still under negotiation.

During the Year, the Group entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party for an unsecured and unguaranteed loan
with principal amount of approximately HK$8.9 million and fixed
interest rate at 3.5% per annum. Pursuant to this loan agreement,
the repayment date on 13 May 2020. On 13 May 2020, the loan is
extended and repayable on 13 May 2021. The loan extension is still
under negotiation.

During the Year, the Company entered into an unsecured loan
agreement with an independent third party. Pursuant to the loan
agreement, the principal amount of the loan is RMB2.0 million with
fixed interest rate of 5% per annum and repayable on 11 May 2030.

The gearing ratio of loans against the total equity as at 31 March
2021 was 57.3%. As the majority of bank deposits and cash on
hand were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, followed by Macau
Pataca, Renminbi and US dollar, the Group’s exchange risk exposure
depended on the movement of the exchange rates of the aforesaid
currencies.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group maintains a conservative approach on foreign exchange
exposure management and ensures that its exposure to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates is minimized. The Group did not engage in any
derivatives agreement and did not commit to any financial instruments
to hedge its foreign exchange exposures during the year ended 31
March 2021. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRE DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, the total number of issued ordinary shares of
the Company was 2,796,156,547 at par value of HK$0.01 each. During
the year, the Company has completed the share placing. Details
of the above transaction is set out in the following section headed
“Placing of New Shares under General Mandate” and note 28 in the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the year under review, the Board proposed
on 26 April 2021 to implement the Capital Reorganisation which
comprises the followings:(i) the Share Consolidation on the basis of
every twenty (20) issued and unissued Existing Shares of par value
HK$0.01 each into one (1) Consolidated Share of par value HK$0.2
each; (i) the Capital Reduction by way of a reduction of the issued
share capital of the Company through a cancellation of the paid-up
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.19 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares so that the nominal or par value of each issued
Consolidated Share will be reduced from HK$0.2 to HK$0.01; and (i)
the Share Subdivision of each authorised but unissued Consolidated
Share of HK$0.2 into twenty (20) Adjusted Shares of HK$0.01 each.

Further, the Existing Shares are traded on the Stock Exchange in
the board lot size of 10,000 Existing Shares. Subject to the Capital
Reorganisation becoming effective, it is proposed that the board lot
size for trading in the Shares shall be changed from 10,000 Existing
Shares to 5,000 Adjusted Shares.

The aforesaid proposal was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting of the Company held on 7June
2021. Details were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 26 April 2021 13 May 2021, 7 June 2021 and 9 June 2021 as
well as the circular of the Company dated 13 May 2021. The Capital
Reorganisation and Change in Board Lot Size have become effective
on 9 June 2021.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 17 March 2021, the Company entered into a Placing Agreement
with an independent placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent, on a best
effort basis, up to up to 473,257,309 new shares of the Company to
not less than six independent places at HK$0.067 per Placing Share.
The completion of the Placing took place on 31 March 2021. A total
of 429,870,000 new shares of the Company have been allotted and
issued to not less than six Placees under general mandate.

The net proceeds from the Placing, after deduction of the placing
commission and other related expenses of approximately HK$28.40
million. As at the date of this report, the net proceeds had not yet been
used as intended. Details of the Placing are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 17 March 2021 and 31 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as mentioned in the following paragraphs, the Group did
not have any other material acquisition, disposal and significant
investment during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Significant investments held and their performance

The Group has made an investment in Primus Power Corporation
(“Primus”), a USA company principally engaged in the provision of
electrical energy storage system solutions.

In February 2021, the Group received a Notice of Assignment for
the Benefit of Creditors and Deadline for Submitting Claims from
Primus (Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors), LLC, pursuant to
which the Group was notified that, Primus Power Corporation made a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors to Primus (Assignment
for the Benefit of Creditors), LLC. It was stated that, Primus Power
Corporation and Primus (Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors),
LLC have no corporate affiliation to each other. Pursuant to this
assignment, Primus Power Corporation transferred ownership of all
of its rights in tangible and intangible assets to Primus (Assignment
for the Benefit of Creditors), LLC for liquidation. The said liquidation
was not yet completed as at the date of this report. The fair value of
the investment in Primus as at 31 March 2021 was nil (FY2020: nil).

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BUSINESS
OF THE GROUP

Looking forward in 2021, the Group has committed to expand the
gold-laden carbon processing and the sale of gold and other precious
metals business.

In face of the growing uncertainties in global economic and political
environment and the historical trend in gold prices, the Board is
optimistic about the future worldwide demand for gold. The new
business of gold-laden carbon processing will enable the Group to
diversify into a promising industry and it is expected to broaden the
Group’s income stream and increase shareholders’ return.

Save as aforesaid, as at the date of this report, the Group had no
other plans for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.
However, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities for
business development. In the event that any definitive agreement is
entered into in relation to any material investments or acquisition of
capital assets, further announcement(s) will be made if and when
required or as appropriate in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

BREEKZERARAR

EEENWE DN
EXRKM HEREARE

BTIEEAEN BE-TE-—F=A=+—
BIEFE AEBEYEEAEMEALE  HER
BEARE -

FBEERRERERR

AN & B 2 ¥ Primus Power Corporation ([Primus) /&
HIEE - PrimusB—REZHEIRBEEMER
GipRRTRZEBRRF o

RZEZ—FZF - KEBEEEPrimus (Assignment
for the Benefit of Creditors), LLCZ I LABIE A A
Xam ANHEEREZRESFEZHRBA - BIEA
£ EE LA - Primus Power Corporation A& A
&5z AR Primus (Assignment for the Benefit of
Creditors), LLC{F i 2 M H 5% o 3% 8 A2 B Primus
Power CorporationEiPrimus (Assignment for the
Benefit of Creditors), LLCZ MM & (E ] (> EHE o
1R % H:E - Primus Power Corporation # % =
RETE N EEENMA E @ 0% B # T Primus
(Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors), LLC * A
EITER - FMUFRRAREB R ARTK - R
TZ—F=A=+—H RPrimusz&EHNRQFE
RE(CZEZEHBREE ) -

AEBEBZRRER

RE_Z_—F AEEBNBERFSHWMITAL
HEESREMESBER -

EREREELBUAREN T EEERSE MK
EeERNEEED EFeHUARREMEES
MBEBRAFLBRE MM IHEBES
SEENZTERR  EFEMSABNTE BY
AT 4R AN 5 B 0 MR A SRR K 1B 0 AR ER Y [ o

B E XAt ESN - RARERH  AREIL B
HBARERKRBEAEE 25TE - A - A&
BREENEHNETERES - MREMERX
RESWBEAREETLEMNEEGZE  A5E
BIRBEEEBAXIMBERARBESFLETR (L
MHRADRBEXEERIELE T RS -

A
A
H

S EEERE 9



Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJEFI_J‘HH& *ﬁ

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any substantial pledge of
assets and substantial contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$Nil (31 March 2020:
HK$2,296,000).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employed approximately 60 employees as at 31 March
2021.

The Group continues to review the remuneration packages of
employees with reference to the level and composition of pay,
general market condition and individual performance. Staff benefits
offered by the Group to its employees include contribution to
defined contribution retirement scheme, discretionary bonus, share
option scheme, medical allowance and hospitalization scheme and
housing allowance. The Group supports a fair, transparent and high
performance culture through its human resources department, by
developing and improving its programs particularly on recruitment,
performance management, training and development and employee
relations.

LITIGATION

The Group has a number of pending litigations and in the opinion
of the legal counsel of the Company engaged in respect of such
litigations, it is premature to predict the outcomes. Details of litigation
are disclosed in the annual financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group during FY2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its business partners, suppliers and customers to
meet its immediate and long-term goals. Accordingly, the Group’s
senior management have kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business update with the stakeholders
when appropriate. The Group has organized and encouraged staff
to participate in local fund raising activities for the underprivileged in
society in Hong Kong. During FY2021, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners,
suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. Details of the
environmental policies and performance are set out in Environment,
Social and Governance Report of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Enterprise Risks

It includes stagnant or negative growth of the Group’s current
businesses and delayed implementation of new business agreements
arising from economic, governmental and political instability. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures by
carrying out feasibility assessment, forecast and projection to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ﬁqﬂuﬁnTMEEl ﬁ?

Operational Risks

The key operational risks of the Group are as follows:

i) Breakdown of the racing system or electronic gaming machines
ii) Misappropriation of assets and fraudulent act by game players
iii) High staff turnover rates particularly on key operational staff
iv) Crisis events leading to disruption of business

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at segmental and departmental levels. Key functions in
the Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits
of authority and reporting framework. Management of the Group
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Financial Risks

Financial risks include liquidity risk, foreign exchange rate risk and
credit risk. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flows
and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the
effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

For foreign exchange rate risk, the Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is the risk that the Group will be reprimanded
by authorities for non-compliance. The management of the Group
works with external professional parties to monitor and ensure that
the business procedures and documentation are fully complied with
applicable local laws and regulations.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DING Lei, aged 30, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 April 2018. Mr. Ding was subsequently appointed
as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer with effect from
20 September 2019. He was also appointed as the Authorised
Representative and the Process Agent with effect from 20 September
2019. Mr. Ding was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board, and as a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board. Mr. Ding has been re-designated from the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company to the Co-Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 11 June 2020, and subsequently re-
designated as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 19 July 2021.
Mr. Ding obtained a Master’'s degree in Finance from The University of
Texas at Dallas in December 2015 and a Bachelor’s degree in English
language and Literature from Luoyang Institute of Technology* (/&%
2T EP7) in July 2012.

Mr. Ding was an investment manager in the fixed income department
in Sichuan Trust Co., Ltd.* (FJII{EFE AR 2 7]) from January 2016
to September 2017. He was the assistant general manager of mining
business department of Bay Area Gold Group Limited (stock code:
1194), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Ding is currently the director, general manager of Luanchuan
Province Luanling Gold Mines Co., Ltd.* (%)I]% % & & & 4 R 2 a)).
He is also a director of Chifeng Yongfeng Mining Co., Ltd.* (77 I£ 7k
LIEEEREML AT He is also a supervisor of Shenzhen Munsun
Asset Management Company Limited* (ZY T EREETREGR A
7). He is a general manager of Luanchuan County Jinxing Mining Co.,
Ltd> (2| &2 HEMiE¥HF R EL A7) and executive deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Baosheng Minging Industrial Co., Ltd. * (&3l
REETEELREREZMLAF]). Save that Mr. Ding is the nephew of
Mr. Liu Shiwei (who is a substantial shareholder of the Company), Mr.
Ding is not related to any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange) of the Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EEREREEERE

DENG Ganghui, aged 45, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 8 April 2021. Ms. Deng
holds a Master's degree in Management from Hunan University
as well as a Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from Central South
University Railway Campus. Ms. Deng has extensive experiences in
financial management and accounting. She had worked in the finance
department at Generali China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. from July 2002
to July 2009. She subsequently served as an manager in the finance
department at Guangdong Hengjian Investment Holding Co., Ltd. from
February 2010 to September 2010. Ms. Deng is the vice president at
Guangzhou Fute Energy Bio-Tech Ltd. since January 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DENG Yougao, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2018. He obtained a
Master’s degree of Economics from JTFAEF 48227 (Institute of Finance
and Economics of Jiangxi*) (which is now known as JT #8 8 4& K £
(Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics®) in July 1994, and a
Bachelor’s degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from 5 &8 & fii A T 12
EB7 (Harbin Shipbuilding Engineering Institute®) (which is now known
as M5 E8 T2 K2 (Harbin Engineering University*)) in July 1988.

Mr. Deng has numerous experiences in different roles in various
companies in different industries. He is a chairman of the board and
director of Shenzhen Henggu Nano Technology Co. Ltd. (Formerly
known as Shenzhen Henggu Anticorrosion Nano Technology Co., Ltd.)
(R IIME E K FLHE B BR A A]), the chairman of the board and the
general manager of Shenzhen City Weishi Chengzhang Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (I THEKRERREETIEARARA), a
supervisor of Shanghai Xinyi Darongxun Electronic Shares Co., Ltd.
(EETmLEERAEFRMHERAF, stock code: 836587, which
had been listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
System till 8 July 2018), the chairman of the board of Shengshi
Henggu (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (B%ttH{E[E (43 %) BRAF]), the managing
partner of Shengshi Henggu (Shenzhen) Management Center (Limited
Partnership) (g5 tt & & (I E B0 (BRA %) and the managing
partner of Shengshi Henggu (Shenzhen) Management Center (15 & 5%
# ORID EE P L. He was appointed as a supervisor of Shanghai
Tiantan Nano Technology Co., Ltd. (LE/&XIBHAKEI AR AR)
in August 2019. Mr. Deng is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Shoucheng Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited, stock
code: 0697), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He was the
supervisor of Shenzhen Qianhai Shi Xin Technology Co., Ltd. (%3l
A& 0 BB PR 2 F]) until May 2019.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

WONG Chi Yan, aged 40, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 14 May 2018. She holds a
Bachelor’'s degree of Business Administration degree in Accounting
awarded by Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master’s degree of
Laws degree in International Corporate and Financial Law awarded
by The University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom. She is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Ms. Wong has extensive experiences in auditing,
accounting and financing as well as merger and acquisition.

Ms. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia
Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as of Quantong
Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Pak Wing Group (Holdings)
Limited”) (stock code: 8316), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong is also the company secretary and
authorised representative of China Properties Investment Holdings
Limited (stock code: 736), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wong served as an executive director of Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 907), from
February 2017 to October 2018, the company secretary of the same
company from March 2017 to September 2017 and an authorised
representative of the same company from March 2017 to October
2018. She was an independent non-executive director of (i) Ding He
Mining Holdings Limited (in liquidation) (stock code: 705, the shares
of which were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 5 February 2020), from January 2018 to July 2018; (i) Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited (stock code 3823, the shares of
which were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 2
March 2020), from March 2017 to February 2019; (i) Huiyin Holdings
Group Limited (former name adopted by the company since October
2017 being Share Economy Group Limited), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1178),
from October 2017 to June 2020; and (iv) Bay Area Gold Group
Limited (stock code: 1194, the shares of which were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from March 2019 to July 2021.
Ms. Wong served as the company secretary of Goldway Education
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8160), from October 2018 to May 2019. She
also served as the company secretary and authorised representative
of Flyke International Holdings Ltd., the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1998), from
March 2017 to December 2020, which was delisted in January 2021.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

EEREREEERE

CHONG Lok Man, aged 35, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the member of each of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company
all with effect from 8 May 2020.

Mr. Chong holds a Diploma in China Business Practices awarded by
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education, and also obtained the
Higher Diploma in Enterprise Management. Mr. Chong is currently the
vice president of Grand View Securities Limited. He was previously
a vice president of the Marketing Department at Emperor Securities
Limited and an investment adviser at N&J Education. He has over 13
years of extensive experiences in financial planning and investment
management.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for information only,
and should not be regarded as the official English translation of such
name. Please refer to the Chinese version of this Annual Report for the
Chinese name.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group was the business of processing
gold-laden carbon and sale of gold and other precious metals as
well as provision of money lender business during the year. Our
business scope has changed significantly this year due to the rapid
development of the gold processing business.

RESULTS, DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The results of the Group for the financial year under review are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 59 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

The Company currently does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. In considering any dividend, the Board shall consider
the actual and expected financial performance of the Group, retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of the
members of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio,
return on equity and the relevant financial covenants, any restrictions
on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders, the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group, and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
The Board has the absolute discretion to recommend any dividends.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
128. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHS

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company for the financial year under
review are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
and under the heading of “CAPITAL STRUCTURE” in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the financial
year under review are set out in consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 62.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
the movement in share options of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statement and in the
section headed “Share Options” in the Directors’ Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, no Company’s reserves are available
for distribution.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers to the total turnover was approximately
78%. The percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer to the total turnover was approximately 56%.
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During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers to the total purchases was
approximately 100%.

The percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier to the total purchases was approximately 84%.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in any of the major customers or suppliers above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were as follows:

Executive Directors:
DING Lei

(Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

(re-designated as Co-Chief Executive
Officer on 11 June 2020)

(re-designated as Chief Executive
Officer on 19 July 2021)

LIU Hu (resigned on 11 June 2020)

ZHU Tianxiang
(Co-Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as the Co-Chief Executive
Officer on 11 June 2020 and

resigned as an Executive Director
and Co-Chief Executive Officer on
19 July 2021)

CHEUNG Nai Yuet (appointed on 11 June 2020 and

resigned on 15 October 2020)

DENG Ganghui (appointed on 8 April 2021)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:

DENG Yougao
WONG Chi Yan
CHONG Lok Man (appointed on 5 May 2020)

In accordance with section 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
DING Lei and Ms. Wong Chi Yan shall retire as Directors, and being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the "AGM”).
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In accordance with sections 86(2) of the Company’s Byelaws, any
person appointed by the Directors to fill a casual vacancy or as
additional Director shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in
the case of an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the meeting.

Accordingly, Ms. DENG Ganghui, who was appointed by the Board
of Directors of the Company during the year, shall retire and being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at the AGM.

Details of re-election of the Directors at the AGM will be set out in
the circular to the shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) in the Bye-laws of the Company being in
force. The Company has maintained Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
certain legal actions brought against its Directors and officers arising
out of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” in
this Director’s Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement and contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the management of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflict of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance (whether in relation to provision of
services to the Group or not) between the Company or its subsidiaries
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be entered in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2021, the persons/companies, other than a Director WR-ZT_—F=A=+—8 T3 AL 28 (KA
or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short ®ZEBEHZEZITHABRIN EAWARRIRE
positions in the shares and underlying shares in the Company as #E 5K I EIEHIFE336IKBFE 2 &ML
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant AN & I 1D K 48 B A 15 #E 35 sk &

to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name Capacity Number of Shares Shareholding
i &1 BHHE BERE
(%)
(Note 1)
(P &%)
LIU Shiwei Beneficial owner 602,373,895 (L) 21.54
WL EnEAA 503,669,620 (S) 18.01
Note 2
MisE2
Shanghao Limited Beneficial owner 508,669,620 (L) 18.01
EnEAA Note 3
Bt 553
TSANG Ho Kwan Interest of controlled corporation 508,669,620 (L) 18.01
&R B¥ EEHEE 2 Ew Note 3
Bt 553
(L) Long positions L FE
(S) Short positions () #E
Notes: iy
1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on the number of 1. HREESLDIBEBEARTAR_ZE—F=A=+
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2021. —BAZEBITRMHEEE -
2. As at 31 March 2021, LIU Shiwei held 503,669,620 put option shares, 2. RZEZ—-—F=Z=A=+—HB WLtEHHAE
so LIU Shiwei was taken to have a short position of 503,669,620 shares 503,669,620 A% 7R 4 & AR 17 - D LB AR R
in the Company. XA B # 5503,669,620% X 17 HI A A e

3. As at 31 March 2021, Shanghao Limited held 503,669,620 call option 3. MR-Z-_—F=H=+—H ' Shanghao Limited}54H

shares. TSANG Ho Kwan is the sole beneficial shareholder of Shanghao 508,669,620k R EEE A ° & A& /& Shanghao
Limited. Therefore, TSANG Ho Kwan is deemed to be interested in all Limited )M —EF=mRE - Bt - REZFHFRBE
the Shares in which Shanghao Limited was interested by virtue of the 1651 - 2 a] B4R B Shanghao Limited # A #E 25
SFO. RN HEE LR -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
and in the section headed “Share options” in this Directors’ Report,
at no time during the Year were there rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor (natural
or adopted), or were such rights exercised by them; nor was the
Company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include Directors, full-time employees, senior executives
and consultants of the Company.

The Scheme became effective on 28 September 2012 (as amended
at special general meetings of the Company held on 8 August 2014
and 15 July 2015) and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares falling to be issued in respect of the
unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under
the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the Shares as at the date of approval of the Scheme. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.
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The subscription price will be determined at the absolute discretion of
the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
offer date; the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date and the nominal value of
the share on the offer date.

The refreshment of scheme mandate limit under the Scheme was
approved by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 13 September
2019 (the “2019 AGM”) by way of an ordinary resolution. The Company
is thus entitled to issue a maximum of 236,628,654 Shares upon
exercise of the share options to be granted under the refreshed
scheme mandate limit, representing 10% of the issued Shares as at
the date of the 2019 AGM.

No share options were granted by the Company during the Year.

Since the exercise period of the outstanding share options granted
on 21 September 2015 and 27 October 2015 under the Share Option
Scheme had expired on 20 September 2020 and 26 October 2020
respectively, the relevant 300,000 share options and 7,000,000 share
options therefore lapsed automatically on the expiry dates.

No share options were exercised, 28,000,000 share options were
lapsed during the Year.
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Details of the movement of the share options of the Company under & FAFE AN A L #E 2 EBF BN MO T
the Scheme for the Year are set out below:

Share
options
Date of grant Expiry date Exercise  Share options held as at 31
of share of share price  held as at 31 March
Grantees options options (HK$) March 2020 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2021
RZBZZ%F RZBZ-F
RiBRE BRE T8 =A=t+-H =A=+-H
AREA BE g (Br) HHEZBRE R BT B S HEzERE
Executive Directors
HTEES
Mr. TAN Teng Hong 27.09.2017 26.09.2022 0.2550 20,700,000 - —  (20,700,000) - -
(resigned on
3 July 2018 as Executive
Director as well as resigned
as Director of some
subsidiaries respectively
on 30 November 2020
and 30 December 2020)
BRBELE
(R=Z-N\F+A=H
BERTEETOAR
CECEET-A=ZtHR
“E-EE+-A=TH
HIETHBRAIZES)
Sub-total:
NGt 20,700,000 - —  (20,700,000) - -
Sub-total for Directors:
EE )i 20,700,000 - = (20,700,000) - -
Others
Hit
Employees
=31 21.09.2015 20.09.2020 1.0800 300,000 - - (300,000) - -
Sub-total for employees:
BB/t 300,000 - - (300,000) - -
Consultants
BEE 2710.2015 26.10.2020 1.2860 7,000,000 - - (7,000,000) - -
Sub-total for others:
H/het: 7,300,000 - - (7,300,000) - -
Total:
o 28,000,000 - - (28,000,000) - -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of its shares in the hands
of the public throughout the Year and up to the date of this Annual
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions between the
Group and its connected persons (as defined under the Listing
Rules) which are subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing
Rules.

The related party transactions set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period as at the
publication date of this report, which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are
set out in the section of “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile”
of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting matters
including a review of the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021 is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. The contents of the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” form the business review as
contained in this Directors’ report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been audited by the auditor of the Company, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. DING Lei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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The Board considers that good corporate governance of the Company is vital
to protect the interests of the shareholders and enhance the performance of
the Group. The Board adopts the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 (‘“CG Code”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 (“Model Code”) to the
Listing Rules as the Company’s corporate governance code and as the
Company’s code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions (on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code) respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had made specific enquiry of all the Directors and each of
the Directors confirmed that he has complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

ADOPTION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES

The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2021 except for the following deviations:

(1) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides, inter
alia, that non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term. However, they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company at least once every three years in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

(2) Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the
roles of Chairman and chief executive officer (“CEO”)
should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company were both
performed by Mr. DING Lei (“Mr. Ding”), an Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 20 September 2019. Mr. Ding was
subsequently re-designated as the Co-CEO, together with Mr. ZHU
Tianxiang (“Mr. Zhu”), an Executive Director of the Company jointly
as the Co-CEO of the Company with effect from 11 June 2020. The
Board considers that having Mr. Ding to act as the Chairman and
Co-CEO of the Company would enhance the operation efficiency
and core competitiveness of the Group, more clearly define the
organizational structure, and simplify the Group’s decision-making
mechanism. Therefore, the Board considers that such deviation is
beneficial to the Group’s overall business development.
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The Board will continue to review the management structure of
the Group from time to time and shall make necessary changes
when appropriate and inform the shareholders of the Company
accordingly.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established a comprehensive approval system.
Matters reserved for the Board’s approval include, among others, the
Company’s material investment decisions and long-term objectives,
financial accounts, declaration of dividend, grant of share options,
competent management, maintenance of internal control systems
and risk management systems, and compliance with statutory and
regulatory obligations.

Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share the responsibility for
proper direction and management of the Company. Daily operations
and administration are delegated to the management.

The management implements the Board’s decisions, makes business
proposals and reports to the Board on the overall performance
of the Group. Daily operations and administration of the business
were delegated to the Executive Directors (“ED(s)”) and the senior
management of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised 6 Directors,
consisting of 3 EDs and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“INED(s)”). Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section of “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual
Report.

During the Year, the Board had held 5 regular Board meetings. The
draft minutes of Board meetings were prepared by the company
secretary of the Company and circulated to all Directors for comments
within a reasonable time. The approved minutes are maintained by
the company secretary and available for inspection by all Directors
at request.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, the Directors shall hold office
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years and eligible for re-election.
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LREABE

The change of Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report and their attendance of the regular Board meetings and the

general meetings held during the Year are set out below.

METIT o

RAFERBERARSERZESTEY  URRAE
FREEBT EHEFEERRBRAGZHER

Attendance of

Attendance of the AGM on
regular Board 28 September
Capacity meetings* 2020*
R-B-EHF
hAZ+NREZ
THEZEER BRRBFAE
Director = 51 HEE R HEE R
DING Lei T% ED, Chairman & Co-CEO 5/5 1/1
(re-designated as Co-CEQ on (R=ZE=TF~A+—AH WITES TRH
11 June 2020 and subsequently EATABREITHRAEREER BREITHRER
re-designated as Chief Executive T -FtAThBERESR
Officer on 19 July 2021) TTHBE)
LIU Hu 2% ED 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 11 June 2020) (RZZ-ZEXA+—HET) HTES
ZHU Tianxang KX ED & Co-CEO 5/5 11
(appointed as Co-CEO on (R—Z=-_FTFEXA+—H WITESRBETHER
11 June 2020 and resigned on BEIRBEITRERR
19 July 2021) RZE-_—F+BA+NBED
CHEUNG Nai Yuet w®JOA ED 2/2 1
(appointed on 11 June 2020 and (RZZEZTFRAT—H WITES
resigned on 15 October 2020) BZERKR-ZZ_ZF
+A+RABT
DENG Yougao ¥Em INED 4/5 1/1
BUFRTES
WONG Chi Yan s5EHE INED 5/5 i
BUFRTES
CHONG Lok Man HE INED 5/5 i
(appointed on 8 May 2020) (R=ZE=FF BUFRTES
FRAN\BEZT)
* number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during  * EHESREAE  SESTHRNRTZSHNH

respective Director’s tenure

RAFE LREEHERIMNEGERHENM
FEMPE - %5 REREMEXR HBREE -

During the Year, none of the Directors above has or maintained any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with
any of the other Directors.

ARARREATEAEFIRE L ERTHRY
SERE -

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of any possible legal actions against the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. DING Lei (“Mr. Ding”) was appointed as the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 20 September 2019.
Mr. Ding was subsequently re-designated as the Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, together with Mr. ZHU Tianxiang (“Mr. Zhu”),
an Executive Director of the Company jointly as the Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 11 June 2020.

The Board considers that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company performed by the same individual, Mr. Ding
(from 20 September 2019 onwards) will enhance the operation
efficiency and core competitiveness of the Group, more clearly
define the organisational structure, and simplify the Group’s decision-
making mechanism, and thus was beneficial to the Group’s overall
business development. Besides, the re-designation of Mr. Ding and
the appointment of Mr. Zhu as the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, can jointly oversee the daily management and operation
of the various developments of the Group and business expansion.

The Board also considers that there are adequate balance of power
and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this situation
periodically and will ensure that present structure would not impair
the balance of power of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual written confirmations of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of
the INEDs and considers that each of the INEDs to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development such as
attending seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company also continuously updates all Directors on the latest
developments and changes of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

Every newly appointed Director has been given a briefing session
conducted by the Company, with a comprehensive induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director
to ensure the awareness of responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements.

BREEKZERARAR

EREBRS
ERRBETRAR

TaAE(TAE D EZTAARARERFITHRE
HoOBAZZE-NFAA+THEER -THEHE
AT ABARRIZHBFETRER  EARQRRITE
BERRABRE(IRAENARRAR 2B FITEAE
H BZE-_ZTFA+—HEBER-

EEARARFAZEFRITRAR 2BAHHT
FEMZZE-NAFNLAZTHE) EERERASE
B e EBRERRZOBEFEN  EEWMATEBERE
REEARBERERS A ARE 2 ERE
BREREN MERTEERERRELEEZE
RARBFETHRAER RIS EREEERL
BAREERAEREAEREROER

EEQTRAD TR MEIET 8RN RRE
Fa6 - 3 465 89 40 5 BB R R BEAR B A28
BRETERAAENHTE -

ByER

ARPIEEEEBLFATEETRELTRAUE
SWBHBELZFEBUMERE LR RSB
MITEFABILML -

EERIIRERER

REALEEARTAZTAKRXALS  2BES
C2EBEEXERPINEEMRT ) BRLE
MRSz MBREEE  WEREFTEARBEZEE
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REBHUREMEREERTE  UWREARSE
HERERFTROEE -
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HEAEERE
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CEERRE

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees and the holding of offices of the
Group (including Directors) were based on internal equity factors and
external market conditions and will be reviewed from time to time.

The remuneration of the employees including EDs generally consists
of:

— fixed salary/allowance — which is set according to the duties,
responsibilities, skills, experiences and market influences;

— pension — which is based on the Mandatory Provident Fund
Contribution Scheme or the local statutory pension scheme;

— short-term variable incentive — which may include commission,
discretionary cash bonus depending on the achievement of
short-term corporate objectives and/or personal targets;

— long-term variable incentive — which may include share options
designed to encourage long-term commitment; and

— other benefits in kind — which may include accommodation,
company car and related services.

The remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Directors was at a
fixed monthly/quarterly/annual payment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
had maintained a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) as required under the CG Code. As at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee is composed of two INEDs,
namely Mr. DENG Yougao (Chairman) and Mr. CHONG Lok Man
and one ED, Mr. DING Lei. Adopting code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) in the
CG Code, the Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration,
compensation and benefits of Directors and senior management. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available and
accessible on the Company’s website at http:/api.successdragonintl.
com/uploads/adee6c72f68fb6205fed6187a5¢ch9692. pdf.

¥ B R

AEEREZHFMRMECZRHE (BRES)
ERAGEFEZRIIBTRME L TET
PARR T

BEEEHTEF)IZHH —REEUTSEA:

- EEHE R - DRBEERE  BE -

EE  BBREMGEEIE:
-  BARE - DREEHERES G &K
BHORERIKRE A &R

- RKHUERE - UM HNBERIET
AEUAREREHRLRERERE REAB

%)

- RHUESRE - EASEABRAER
B )

- HMEYWREN — URRER - AREKRA
B R -

BUFNTERLHMDREAR FE /Y
%2 EEACA -

FMEES

REEAFERBERARSHE  RAARREREE
ATFRIRE—BEREFMEEe(FTWEER]D -
RABREAS  FHEESHMEBYFRTES
HEStE(ERRAENEER—RNTES
TEEEERK - BBRMDEEETRIZFRINMES
B120)i) FHEZEESEBERIEFTREREEA
BHM - HERERN URHMESGRUEER
BE - THNEES BESECEHNAAR 2 H
http://api.successdragonintl.com/uploads/27661c1dd
a8305c0c9f4a5863feec568.pdf » A &R -
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TtEERHSE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee had held 1 physical RZAEE  HMEESD BT1IARESE 5
meeting for the purpose of considering the remuneration of the —EREEE=HE - A& & B G E K201 -
Directors, remuneration policy and structure of the Group.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings held during RAEERFTZHMEZES @ H 2L F B R EHT

the Year are set out below. NN

Attendance*
Member RE& HERB R
DENG Yougao (Chairman) BES(FE) 1/1
DING Lei T& 11
CHONG Lok Man (appointed on 8 May 2020) HEX(N-_FT_FTFAANBERD) 1/1
* number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during  * EHESHEAS  SESTHRNBTZEHIH

respective Director’s tenure

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EERSREEEFMH
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors and RAFEZEETE IR HNEZEHE 2 5 8 L%
emoluments of senior management by band for the Year are setout in S EZ DS REEBEM S H R AERE AT HE
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report. ¥R &R M 5E11 °

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company R E@EFELREEARELL  AARBBELES
had maintained a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) JATEIRF—BHRBERLZZES((REEES]) -
as required under the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the RKRAREEH  ELLECHMELBILIFERNTES
Nomination Committee is composed of two INEDs, namely Mr. HAESEARHELTEEUR—BHITEET &
DENG Yougao and Mr. CHONG Lok Man and one ED, Mr. DING Lei %4 (ER)ARK - RRZECAEREEL T
(Chairman). The Nomination Committee is responsible for making BEHFETUMEZHTFE M ESSRMEHEER
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment & °

of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee had held 1 physical RZAEE  EREZE@CBTIXESEEE B
meeting for the purpose of reviewing the board diversity policy and i EE @R EZ T B EEIEZHENESRS
nomination policy and the structure, size and composition of the ~28H# - RERAERK EEREEREBFLAS
Board, retirement of directors at the forthcoming AGM as well as  FETARANL T GBI IENTES 2B -
assessing independence of INEDs.

BREEKZERARAR
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CEERRE

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
suitably qualified candidates to become Board members. The
Nomination Committee also ensures the Board comprises members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate weights necessary
to accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities.

In considering the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee assessed the relevant candidates on criteria such as
integrity, independent mindedness, experience, skill and ability to
commit time and effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities
effectively etc., and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available and
accessible on the Company’s website at http://api.successdragonintl.
com/uploads/25a738503859d8d753628d445c3f9054.pdf.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings held during
the Year are set out below.

RAEBK

REZEGRANEFSRILEBEZEIUHEZE
EitE -REZEERITESTIZIRE HABRR
MR TRERAABZAEEBANBRTEEEKE -
REZBETHREFEHARTELEQER
Mg KEEAN  NERASEZ EBHERE -
REE - 2E - kB REE -

REBZEHMESS  REZEGCYHERBKEE
ANETTEHE - UEBE - B B4 - & XEE
BE 59 7GE T H B ) e 45 7 DA R R4 B 1T BB 7% e B
AEEREE YRAEFSRLEBZZARL
/e o

i

REZEGZRESEDHNARA 2 @
http://api.successdragonintl.com/uploads/
b84863df6698acc8aladcd7282fd1e23.pdf + LA
BRH o

RAFERTZREZBEGARAIHREBRHIIWM
o

Attendance*
Member RE& HEB R
DING Lei (Chairman) T&(ZEE) 1/1
DENG Yougao HES 1/1
CHONG Lok Man (appointed on 8 May 2020) HEX(N-_FT_FTFAANBEZD 1/1
* number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during  * EHESHEAY SESTHRNERTZEHIH

respective Director’s tenure
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has, upon the recommendation of the Company’s
Nomination Committee, adopted a board diversity policy for purpose
of maintaining a diversity of the Board which can in turn enhance the
Board’s decision-making capability. In assessing potential candidates
for the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the guidelines
and factors set out in the board diversity policy with a view that any
appointment to the Board will be based on merit, having regard to the
ability of candidates to complement and expand the skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board as a whole. Diversity of the Board can
be achieved through consideration of a number of relevant factors,
including but not limited to independence, age, gender, ethnicity and
cultural background, education, skills, knowledge and experience.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of cultural
background, education, skills and experience) to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current composition of
the Board is characterised by diversity after taking into account the
Company’s own business model and specific needs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
had maintained an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) as
required under the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the
Audit Committee is composed of three INEDs, namely Ms. WONG
Chi Yan (Chairman), Mr. DENG Yougao and Mr. CHONG Lok Man.
The Audit Committee is responsible for considering appointment
of the external auditor, reviewing the interim and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board and the Group’s internal
control systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://api.successdragonintl.com/uploads/2550501e102f61e41305762
5c25b664d.pdf.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had held 2 physical meetings.
Annual/interim results and annual/interim reports, and also internal
audit of the Group were discussed during the meetings.

BREEKZERARAR
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CEERRE

The attendance of the Audit Committee meetings held during the Year RAEEFRITZERTES @2 2 HE B NET 0

are set out below. e

Attendance*
Member K& i E R
WONG Chi Yan (Chairman) 5EB(FE) 2/2

(re-designated on 8 May 2020) (R=ZZE=ZFHANEHAMT)

DENG Yougao HES 2/2
CHONG Lok Man (appointed on 8 May 2020) T2 (RZZTZTFRANBEZT) 2/2
* number of attended meetings/number of meetings held during  * EHESHEAS  SESTHRNBTZEHIH

respective Director’s tenure

For the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee #HE—ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HIWHRFE BFEZZX
had performed the following duties: B0 BITUTHE:

—  reviewed and commented on the half-yearly and the annual — EHEIRAEENRNCEGKREE ZEF
financial report of the Group of the financial year under review ERE2FYVBHRE  RERIESZ Ui
before submission to the Board for adoption and publication; B K )2

—  met with the external auditor and independent accountant to —  HEINEREEI B eteRE Mﬁ.ﬂ“ﬁ
discuss the financial matters of the Group and reviewed their SEHKEE - I%FEETZ%( MkBLIEx
findings, recommendations and representations; Bz 335 - 22k PR

—  reviewed and approved the terms of engagement and scope  — AR KR AEZIEINEAZ AT - REPEAZ B AL
of services of the external auditor, internal audit function and EBIY gz ERERGEHE:

independent accountant;

—  reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function; — W ABEZBAE 2R

—  reviewed the Company’s internal control systems and risk — REIANA ZNEPEEESIE R AR EEGE
management systems; and )54

—  reviewed the policy of corporate governance of the Company  — R ANA EEEABKNIZBEEE R
and performed the corporate governance function in SFAID.BAEIT R R E R R AE o

accordance with D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remunerations in respect of audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2021 provided by the Company’s auditor,
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, are as follows:

TEERRE

¥ B B %7 A

ARBZBMPEREGTMEBMARIANE
BT —F-A=T - BULFERHEEZNIEE
ZIRSZ H BT

HK$'000
FET
Audit services EZRB 980
Non-audit services including review on annual results FEEZRE(BEEHNFEZE 118
announcement, interim results announcement and preparation BRAERPHEENE MU
of report of continuing connected transactions MGEFEREISRE)
Total EEt 1,098

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the financial
year under review, the Directors have:

- based on a going concern basis;

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

— made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, confirm that they
are not aware of any material uncertainties to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting

BRAMBBERIED2EME

EERACSHEERUAEEHRE - RAEEM
HEERNZERAR 0

- BRESBELEEERHUKE:

- HEEEEABRLEBER: X

- fEhE

" RFERAEZHE R A -

EFNMEHEEENRER  REL MBS LA
EEHARRAFEKERNTFAEARMZIEMNX
RS Z E ] B R HEEF 3% -

ARBZEMRAPBHRERRZERETBAERSE

responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the 58H Z B ZEMHENR °
Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 58.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and reviewing
an effective system of internal control and safeguarding the assets in
the interests of the Group and the shareholders.

The Group has established policies and procedures for approval
and control of expenditures. Pursuant to a risk-based methodology,
the Board plans its internal control review with resources being
focused on higher risk areas. The Board has delegated to the senior
management of the Group the implementation of such systems of
internal controls. The management throughout the Group maintains
and monitors the internal control system on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the policies and procedures in place are adequate.
Any findings and recommendations would be discussed by the
management and followed up properly and timely.

For the internal audit function, the Group engaged an independent
advisory firm to perform independent reviews and reported regularly
the review results to the Board through the Audit Committee on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems. The Board, through the Internal Audit function
of the Group, has conducted annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group including the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Such procedures are designed to manage rather than
to eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The review report showed that the Group
maintained an effective internal control system and no major control
deficiency had been identified during the Year. The scope and
findings of the review had been reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board also reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the employees of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

In order to promote transparency, accountability and responsibility in
respect of the operation of a listed company, and for the maintenance
of good corporate governance, the Company, assisted by legal
advisors and financial advisors, would notify the Stock Exchange and
make relevant disclosure to the public as soon as practicable of any
inside information of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board may whenever it
thinks fit call SGMs, and shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary, to require a SGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business (the “Head Office”) at Room
903, 9/F., Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza, 14 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to call the
SGM and include the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.

If the Board do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with the detail
contact information to the company secretary at the Head Office at
Room 903, 9/F., Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza, 14 Science Museum
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the general meeting.
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CEERRE

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

() Not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 20 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in
an AGM and not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than
10 clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing
if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in any SGM; or

(b) Not less than 14 clear days’ notice or not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in
all other SGMs.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Shareholders
may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also
make enquiries to the Board in writing with their contact information
and deposited at the Head Office at Room 903, 9/F., Tower A, New
Mandarin Plaza, 14 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company believes that an effective shareholder communication
policy enhances its strong culture of disclosure and its commitment
to keeping shareholders informed. The shareholders communication
policy (the “Policy”) was established by the Board to reflect the
Board’s belief that shareholders should have access to the latest
information about the Company, utilising, where practicable,
electronic communications together with more traditional means of
communication. The Company has in place policies and procedures
for the purpose of compliance with our continuous and periodic
disclosure obligations as required by the Stock Exchange.
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Clear communication and easy access to information are important
objectives of the Company’s communication strategy. Information is
communicated to shareholders regularly through:

° Announcements, circulars and other releases made to the Stock
Exchange and media;

° Financial reports including annual reports and interim reports;
° Annual general meetings and other general meetings; and
° The Company’s website www.successdragonintl.com.

The annual general meetings and other general meetings provide
important opportunities to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and for shareholders to express their views. The Board
encourages shareholder attendance and participation at general
meetings.

The Policy is reviewed
effectiveness.

regularly by the Board to ensure its

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. LEUNG Lai Seung as the company
secretary of the Company. The role of the company secretary is
to ensure effective information flows and communication among
Directors, as well as between shareholders and management of the
Company. The company secretary is also responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. During the Year, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update her skills and knowledge.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The bye-law of the Company is available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. There were no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the Year.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1182)
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group” or “We”) are
pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2021. This report
serves as an effective communication tool between us and the public
who are interested in our ESG policies, initiatives and performance.
Throughout the year, we continually promote sustainability within our
operations. Importantly, this is a year of change, where our business
has switched its focus onto gold-laden carbon processing, making
a huge difference on the Group’s social impacts and management
strategies.

The Report is prepared both in English and Chinese. In case of
inconsistency, the English version shall prevail. Electronic version
of this ESG Report is available on the website of HKEx at www.
hkexnews.hk, or our company website at www.successdragonintl.
com.

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report details the operations of the Group’s core business for
the financial year from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 (‘the Year” or
“the Reporting Period” or “FY2021”). The reporting scope covers our
major segment, gold-laden carbon processing (‘gold processing”),
which occupies over 75% of the Group’s revenue. Other segments,
such as the management of electronic gaming machines in hotels
and casinos (“outsourced business process management”) are not
regarded.

Our business scope has changed significantly this year due to the
rapid development of the gold processing business, such that the
gaming equipment service segment has become much less important
to the Group’s total revenue. Therefore, readers may not compare the
operational figures with last year’s. Besides, the Group sees the Year
as a starting point for the gold processing business and promises to
optimize our resource allocation henceforth.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Report has been prepared according to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (‘ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
The Report is based on the four report principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency. To provide a clear view of the
Group’s material topics, we have conducted a materiality assessment
and presented the results in the Report. With regard to those
important topics, we compute KPIs to measure our performance
quantitatively. We follow the methodologies used in the previous
reports so that the effectiveness of our control policies can be proved
with time, except that we had a change in business scope this year.

For convenience, an index is available in the last chapter of the Report,
for the location of KPIs within the Report.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

The company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) has overall
responsibility for KPI setting and material disclosure, and hereby
confirms that all information in the report is presented to the best of
the Board’s knowledge.

This Report contains forward-looking statements that are based
on assumptions and expectations at the time of its publication.
No guarantee is expressed as to the accuracy of the statements
and the Group expressly disclaims any liability for and assumes no
responsibility to correct or update those forward-looking statements
in the event that any of the statements does not materialize or turns
out to be incorrect.

CONTACT US

We are truly open to your voices on this ESG Report. You are more
than welcome to contact us through the following channels:

Tel: 3576 3309
Email: contactus@successdragonintl.com
Official website: www.successdragonintl.com

ESG GOVERNANCE

As gold processing has only become our major revenue segment
since 2020, the thorough determination of company’s ESG risks and
opportunities is still under way. In the Year, the Board delegated
management to perform environmental control over the operations in
Yunnan PRC. The Board also discusses ESG issues from time to time
and acknowledges the impacts of ESG risks on the Group’s revenue
and business model. In the future, the Group would consider bringing
up more ESG topics in internal conferences and formulate a solid
governance structure on the subject.

BRI -#HERERERS

&R

WETHRIEIE P LT AR B SR27 PR IR IR - A
ghERMERSIIRE  HekERESHESD
wmE - MEDEREEN 2t FHER-TMUH
BEHRERA - REMZ2RAEESZHE - RS
ETEENTERRBRENZINER - BRZF
EZEE M EHERERERAETEEAER
BRI - BRAFEEBEHE S PTSE S - A
BREAMERSAMARE  UERSHEEZHRK
P EERRITZER °

RERFL  MERKR -EHERERR - UfHtE
ARETAERERIERUE -

R R At

ARREFE(EFEDRBEREAVEERELE
EREEEERAEM  LEUERRSAMEEHR
TREEMETZEEZT -

AHEESENTBEETORRRBEHMIELHD
ATBE MEBR AL - RSB BT 58 B BR M & 28 7 1L
HAEFMRE  BEMEMZERATEERKER
TIEH  ARRERETAET EREHZEA
BRI 2 BAE -

BAEEM

P& SR
REBR - B

BMTRARRE HalhEnaRs
BMTEBTIRBHAE:

%74 1 3576 3309
% # : contactus@successdragonintl.com
B 7 #8uh : www.successdragonintl.com

RIE -HERER

HRESNIER-T_SFERARMOES
WDl HADEFRDEEARRIRE &8 R
EREBEEE  AFEE EFERREEEHT
BEEXKLELETRREZE BEFENTHH
WIRE - HEREARELRARE LEREAR
REBEAEEREREBERNTZE - KK X
SEKRERNABERTMAAEZRE HERE
A WYHABFEENERBOERRE -

BRERZERARAR —Z-_L2-_-FFEHS 43



Environment, Social and Governance Report

R - ERERERE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To be truly successful — as the company name suggests, we cannot
live on our own and must maintain good relationships with parties
around. Communication is therefore a requisite, through which we
understand stakeholders’ expectations and respond with corporate
actions. During the meetings, not only do we gather opinions, but
we also speak for ourselves, to spread our mission and values, to
depict the actions we have taken to mitigate the environmental and
social impacts, and to explain the challenges we face in achieving
eco-efficiency. This promotes mutual understanding between us and
stakeholders.

Stakeholder Group Concerns and expectations
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has conducted a materiality assessment with the help
of stakeholders. To get a holistic view of our corporate risks,
we consulted a variety of parties, such as clients, suppliers and
employees, each of whom indicated their concerns through a
questionnaire. In the final decision of materiality, the Board considered
beyond the assessment results and takes into account the intelligence
gathered from daily communications.

Supply chain stability and sustainability

Conferences and business collaborations
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Materiality Assessment
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As illustrated above, the ESG topics of highest priority to the Group
are Customer Relation and Protection, Product Quality and Safety,
Employees’ Health and Workplace Safety, and Employment and
Welfare Policies. Knowing that we serve luxurious items, stakeholders
have placed heavy emphasis on product quality and customer
protection in defense of their interest. In response, the Group has
established a sound mechanism on quality assurance, making sure
that every facet of the product emits the greatest of glow, satisfying
customer’s needs.

On the other hand, our operation involves a lot of machineries and
chemical procedures where accidents could happen relentlessly.
To put employees at ease, we ensure everybody is equipped with
knowledge, awareness and gear. This echoes with one of our major
strategies — People First.

As we source the gold-laden carbon directly from the market, we
deal only with the latter stages of gold production: desorption and
electrolysis, which pose limited harms to the environment. Much of
the heavy treatment on gold has been accomplished by external
parties beforehand, such as mining, crushing and leaching. Hence,
the environmental responsibilities are mostly externalized and this
report will focus primarily on the social issues concerning the Group’s
business.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
Product Quality

To requite client’s trust and support, the Group places an unwavering
focus on product quality and exercises stringent control on the
production processes.

From sourcing to production, the Group stands firm in gatekeeping.
We review the supply of gold-containing activated carbon regularly.
As, appearance-wise, the materials can be easily confused with
charcoal granules, we spend a lot of efforts in avoiding forgeries, such
as examining the chemical components of the substances before we
confirm a buying decision with a new party. On the other hand, if a
load is found to be contaminated with many other kinds of metals
and does not constitute a sufficient percentage of gold by mass, our
personnel will request for replacement, so as to avoid “garbage in,
garbage out”.

Our due diligence does not stop at the factory gate but is applied
across the entire production journey. One of the critical steps in gold
treatment is desorption, where the Group requires its staff to check
whether the gold has been fully unloaded from carbon and whether
the unwanted substances have been removed. We do not let the
process continue before making sure the above criteria are met.

While we retrieve gold, precisely gold sludge, by means of electrolysis,
we do not present our products in this very raw form. We carry out
refinement and smelting to improve the purity and shapes of gold for
the elicitation of gleam and glamour. Taking a step further, laboratory
testings are conducted to measure the purity, malleability and ductility
of the precious metal. This guarantees the bullion supplied is up to
standard and can suit a wide range of manufacturing designs before
the gold ultimately reach consumers in the market.

Customer Relation and Protection

The Group serves clients with utmost sincerity and always reflects
on our business processes. To this end, we develop extensive
communication channels to gather opinions and learn about our
clients. Listening to their development blueprints and plans, we
align our production with their needs. If they are going to launch a
promotional campaign, we would then step up our production to meet
the expected increase in demands.
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The Group values opinions and is open to complaints of all forms,
which can be expressed through emails, phones, and on our
webpage. While some may find them discouraging, we take them all
and see them as a precious tool for improvement but not a stumbling
block on our path to success. We log all the incidents and investigate
the corresponding business process, whether sourcing, production or
communication, in an attempt to make our service satisfactory to all.
This reminds us not to rest on our laurels that we have to stay alert
all the time to make a way forward in this competitive market.

As a responsible company, the Group secures client’s interest through
the provision of after-sales service. We stand firmly by our clients
and provide continuous support to them by swiftly responding to
their queries, regardless of the size of transaction or the span of
collaboration. In the case where an issue is found with our products,
we humbly take in the allegations and would deliver products again
upon verification, so as to maintain a positive relationship with clients
and minimize the disturbance to their operation. We protect clients
also by not disclosing their information to third parties. We limit the
use of client information to fitting internal purposes only. Without a
written consent, nothing would be shared with organizations or people
outside of the transactions.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are one of the key stakeholders to the Group. The group’s
main suppliers are gold-containing activated carbon and production
machinery vendor. When conducting tender and procurement,
vendors’ track record relating to legal and regulatory compliance as
well as their reputation and experience are considered apart from the
economic and commercial benefits.

Strict selection procedures and management’s approval are required
before the confirmation of all suppliers’ contracts. Certain terms
related to social and environmental aspects such as (i) Prohibition on
use of child labour and forced labour; (i) Prohibition on discrimination
due to ethnicity, gender, age, disability or marital status during the
employment process; (i) Provision of fair wages and all other legally
mandated benefits; (iv) Provision of a safe and hygienic working
environment; (v) Incorporation of sustainability principles into business
decision; and (vi) Prohibition on corruption and money laundering are
stated on the procurement contracts signed between the suppliers
and the Group.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

As people always come first to the Group, employee’s health and
safety has been treated with the highest level of attention. Where
the work is deemed dangerous, the Group would mitigate the risks
with a series of control measures, promoting a sense of security and
comfort in the workplace.
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The Group has defined a risk management approach to reduce both
the likelihood and magnitude of accidents. We have stipulated working
guidelines for each industrial process, in order to make workers be
aware of the risks associated and to perform duties in an industry-
acknowledged safe manner.

As we pickle activated carbon with acids to facilitate gold desorption,
we keep close monitoring on chemicals. The prominence of labels
on every storage tank with clear signs of warnings reminds workers
of the substances they are dealing with and the consequences of
spilling over. We also practice segregation of acids and bases as
toxic or flammable gases can result from the mixing of the two. To
further ensure correct mitigative procedures are adopted, the Group
has assigned a safety supervisor to guide workers over the use of
chemicals and require workers to wear gloves before moving, opening,
or refilling the storage tanks.

Besides, substantial heat and pressure is required for efficient
desorption. As such, prudence engineering is practised to avoid the
heat being released to the surroundings through the accurate control
of valves and the use of insulated materials. If the heat is discharged
to where chemicals are placed, acid fumes may evolve and intoxicate
workers eventually.

Considering the business is new to the Group, we provide safety
trainings for workers regardless of their seniority, covering all the
identifiable risk items from our assessment exercise. We strictly
prohibit anybody from commencing to work when he or she has not
gone through the corresponding training sections compulsory for the
type of work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has recorded no safety
incidents, meaning no deaths and injuries arising from work.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group takes pride in our employees and is committed to serving
them with best interest in relation to remuneration, work environment,
and culture. This year, the Group has undergone a significant change
of business scope. Without the support from employees, the Group
would come across as much more disoriented and unassured.
Therefore, it is our foremost mission to take care of their well-being
in expression of gratitude.
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Rewarding the hard work of the team, the Group reviews the wages
regularly, making the pursuit of a higher quality of life possible amid
inflation. On top of the increment, the Group offers performance
bonus, making sure employees are not treated less or unfairly for the
gain produced for the company. In terms of welfare, the Group adopts
the “Five Social Insurances plus a Housing Fund” scheme enforced
by the Chinese government, offering comprehensive protection for
employees against the representative needs of life, from work injuries
to maternity to retirement.

The Group strikes to promote workplace equality and diversity. We do
not discriminate against gender, age, religion and cultural background.
In view of our business nature, male may be more capable of the
labour, yet we offer equal opportunities to females. To escalate from
being discrimination-free to being truly inclusive, the Group holds
internal meetings and encourages staff to channel their thoughts and
sentiment, giving rise to the concept of “team”, which ultimately the
Group hopes to grow as.

Throughout the Year, the Group commits to the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Employee Ordinance in Hong
Kong. At the end of Reporting Period, the Group has 27 employees
in total, 16 of which are based in Yunnan, operating the factories of
gold processing. The remaining are in Hong Kong, responsible for
other businesses and the Group’s management affairs. In the future,
the Group will consider expanding our team in Yunnan and review
our human resources policy with respect to community needs and
social momentum.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Employees are the most precious asset of our company. The Group
values every employee and strive to provide a safe and friendly work
environment.

Before assigning new employees to various positions, a pre-
employment safety training designed based on their respective job
nature would be provided to prepare them for the tasks ahead.
Besides, a new comer orientation program would also be arranged
to introduce our company culture and policies.

Regarding on-the job trainings, general trainings on desorption,
purification and smelting skills would be provided to employees
working on site. In addition, pursuant to the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, employee engaged in special operations
must receive specialized training and obtain qualifications in advance
for managing specialized operations. Thus, trainings on pressure
vessel operation, electric hoist operation and hazardous chemicals
treatment would be provided to employees operating in specialized
field.
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RIE HERERRSE

In order to promote and sustain a high level of productivity and
safety in our workplace, we have incorporated the 6s concepts in
our training process which comprise the Japanese 5s principles of
Seiri (Sort), Seiton (Set in Order), Seiso (Shine), Seiketsu (Standardize),

REFAREFTESMNREERERZ2KF
HPBeSEEMSBAFIBIE  ERENHIE
2B\ BR BFRERERISSRAER EIER
(285 -

Shitsuke (Sustain), with the addition of “Safety”.

Sort “Sort” is a measure to improve productivity in the workplace through separating essential work items
from unnecessary items to make those essential work items more readily accessible.

gt (BB S ERATLESMEESE  BBEUEETUETEYMED R - 1 E MEREREZ
ENBTIEYM -

Set in Order “Set in Order” is a measure to improve productivity in the workplace through arranging the essential
work items sorted out in a systematic way with an aim to maximize accessibility and space.

2in [BREIEERATIESHEERE  BRABVEIEYREERLELTRARE  WEKRREDREY
mEERTIESHMZER -

Shine “Shine” is a measure to improve safety in the workplace through regularly cleaning and inspecting the
working environment to prevent injuries and products from being stained due to uncleanliness.

=i ERIEEXNETESMLEKT BBFHERRBREIIERE  WIEXBERERERETRM
FEE

Standardized “Standardized” is a measure to develop a routine for the first three steps through identifying the best
practices and creating a consistent procedure to improve the productivity and safety in the workplace.

B R DERIBESMMZELBHENL BBBNSGEEL SIEHF—RE BALESHINEERER
L2 IKFE o

Sustain “Sustain” is a measure to create a culture that follows the standardized procedures established over
a long period of time.

Eo) [(ZRIEHETE —BETRATKEEREN XL -

Safety “Safety” is a measure to provide a safe working environment through setting preventive controls to
keep workers safe.

zZE (Z 2 | EHERFLZE2NITHERE  BEWETH&HER BREILSR -

LABOUR STANDARDS

As stated in the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, recruiting
juveniles under the age of 16 and forced labour are strictly prohibited.

In order to avoid the use of any child labour, the Group requires every
job applicant to provide true and accurate personal information during
the recruitment process for examinations. Besides, regular inspections
are conducted to ensure no child labour is employed.

In addition, the Group has arranged insurance package including
basic endowment insurance, basic medical insurance, employment
injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance to
all employees as required in the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China. Furthermore, we strictly abide by the statutory working
hours as stated in the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, we were not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant Labour Law in the PRC.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Honesty, transparency and integrity have always been the core values
of the Group, where respect for regulations and business ethics are
conspicuously emphasized. The Group strictly complies with the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Supervision Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) in Hong Kong.

Anti-fraud policies have been implemented throughout the Year: we
conduct systematic fraud risk assessments regularly and review the
risk control mechanism through collaborating with external parties.
We crack down on money laundering activities and keep track of the
flow of the public account. Additionally, we prohibit the derivation
of personal benefits, whether financial or administrative, using one’s
authority. Once convicted, we will report to the local government body
and terminate the employment immediately.

During the reporting period, the Group did not observe any cases
involving bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.

SOCIAL INVESTMENT

The community feeds us with resources and talents. While we take
these up as nutrients, it is our responsibility to give back, on the
grounds that enterprises and community are always interdependent
and equilibrium is yet to be achieved in this ecosystem.

The Group encourages employees to participate in community
events. Yunnan, our production base, is undergoing large-scale
urbanization and modernization, both of which create social issues
that compromise the quality of life of a certain class of people. The
Group is deeply aware of these and has always wanted to help. In the
Year, we have witnessed the beauty of love through the participation
of volunteering events.

In the future, the Group would consider extending our reach to
the underprivileged and people in need in promotion of social
sustainability, as we would not like any part of society to be left out,
if not unattended.
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R - ERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainability and
has exerted pollution control as far as possible. We abide by
relevant environmental protection laws and regulations, primarily the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China and so
on. Based on the Technical Policy for Pollution Prevention and Control
of Gold Industry ([ & &1T5 5 £F A M ]), our environmental
management strategies are formulated.

As hydrometallurgy is practiced in production, the Group’s major
environmental concerns stem from the use and handling of chemicals.
In response, the Group employs a technology that frees production
from poisons. By avoiding cyanide (such as NaCN), a highly reactive
and toxic substance commonly adopted as an elution tool due to its
high affinity for silver and gold, the subsequential processes of residue
treatment and discharge are prevented in our production, making it
much more environmentally-friendly than the conventional way of gold
recovery.

In order to make the cyanide-free approach practicable, desorption
would require additional supply of heat and pressure. This is where
the Group has implemented further ways to control its environmental
footprint, such as the harvest and reuse of heat, reducing extra energy
input into chemical processes.

EMISSION

The Group is dedicated to reducing emission by all means. Our
dedication lies in the adoption of clean technologies, such as
recovering gold by electrolysis in lieu of intense combustion,
which would otherwise produce huge amount of NOx. In view
of our industrial process, the generation of other air pollutants is
also minimal, for example, hydrogen cyanide, which is extremely
poisonous. Hence, the Group assumes this is immaterial.
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To supply heat for desorption, the Group utilizes electric heaters in
place of direct fuel combustion. Therefore, we produce negligible
Scope 1 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emission and the major concerns
arise only from Scope 2 emission. The following charts set out the
relevant statistics for the reporting period:

BRI -#HERERERS

RABBRIFHRERE  AEEEAEREREER
BIREERE o Bt - HMEENHEVEERED
MAZE AR MEBREIHEREEE2H5R
TE & RS B E A R

Indicators Unit Total (FY2021) Total (FY2020)
& At
(—2=—% -
BE By MBEE) BEREE)
Scope 1 Direct Emissions kg of CO.e Nil Nil
HWE1TEE R FrR_SRESE 2 =
Intensity (per Dollar of Revenue) kg of CO,e/Revenue HK$'000 Nil Nil
mE &) Fr= ﬁ%ﬁ;%/?%ﬁ%é = =z
Scope 2 Indirect Emissions kg of CO.e 274,168 38,680
0 [E 2 2 HE FrR_SRESE
Intensity (per Dollar of Revenue) kg of CO,e/Revenue HK$'000 3.43 0.42
mE &) Fr= ﬁ%ﬁ;%/?%ﬁ%é
Note: B 3%

The principle of the GHG calculation is based on the “Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol, while we adopt
emission factors from the ESG Reporting Guide published by the HKEXx.

Scope 1: Direct emissions from machineries and vehicles that are owned
by the Group

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by the
Group

Scope 3: Other indirect emission is optional disclosure

Revenue of the Group for FY2021 is HKD $79,904,040.

WASTE

The Group produces mostly daily living waste and strictly complies
with the “Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers”. As the waste arise mostly from personal hygiene issues, we
do not see this as a material topic to the business.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-
compliance in emissions with the relevant environmental laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
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R - ERERERE

Being in line with the principle of eco-efficiency, the Group practices
reuse and recycling that we do not emit hazardous materials to the
environment, such as chemicals and the unloaded activated carbon.
Considering the gold recovery process, the pregnant solution that
contains gold removed from carbon undergoes electrolysis then gold
deposition results. After we harvest the precious metal, the solution
returns to the original state, meaning it can serve to desorb gold from
carbon and become pregnant again. Hence, we do not discharge the
solution to sewer but let it re-circulate within the production system.
On the other hand, activated carbon could be regenerated by acid-
washing and heat, thus we have been returning this valuable material
to suppliers rather than sending them to landfills.

USE OF RESOURCES

Saving resources is one of the major environmental directions of the
Group. In fulfilment of our business goal, we look for options that
require the least input and promote the concept of conservation, in
favour of ecological health and the Earth’s resilience.

While our production takes up a lot of heat supplied by electricity, it
is not an arbitrary or irresponsible decision. Traditional way of gold
desorption does not require heat as much, yet alternating heating
and cooling is practiced due to the different temperature requirement
between desorption and electrolysis. In that case, extra amount of
energy is spent on the thermal adjustment within each production
cycle. On the contrary, we do not carry out cooling, allowing
the solution to stay at elevated temperatures at the end of each
production cycle so that no remainder heat is wasted.

In our plants, we have displayed slogans and signs that remind
workers of the importance of energy saving. We encourage them to
adopt an eco-friendly lifestyle by adopting sunlight, using the least
light to meet their purposes, and commuting by stairs rather than lift
if possible.

Water is another issue that concerns the Group. As the desorption
fluid is mostly diluted, the Group consumes certain amount of
freshwater in production. While the major consumption has been
saved by reusing the liquid, evaporation takes place requiring the
addition of water.

The Group adopts a robust management system, which keeps track
of water use patterns and compares usage among periods. Where
water consumption is significantly higher on a year-over-year basis,
we would investigate and develop responsive strategies, such as
replacing the leaking faucets.
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The following table shows the figures of resource consumption in our
business operations:

HERERRE

TRINFRBEMEFEEFEREFENERE:

The Group Unit Total (FY2021) Total (FY2020)
&t A&t
(=2=—% e S
rEH B MBEE) BEREE)
Electricity consumption kWh 340,920 46,438
RE FRE
Intensity (per Dollar of Revenue) kWh/Revenue HK$'000 4.27 0.51
mE &) TRE,/FE7T R
Water consumption tonnes 800 Insignificant
FA oK A M
Intensity (per Dollar of Revenue) tonnes/Revenue HK$'000 0.01 Insignificant
mE &) W, T s LT
Note: B 3%

Revenue of the Group for FY2021 is HKD $79,904,040.
Assume water density is 1 tonne per cubic metre.

By 2023, the Group promises to reduce our electricity and water use
by 10% of FY2021.

CLIMATE CHANGE

As part of the community, we do not live aside of the impact of
climate change. The Group manages the issue with respect to the
Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD), which outlines four components: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.

Our governance is mainly driven by the Board, who sets out a clear
strategy: to achieve eco-efficiency, the delivery of satisfactory goods
and services while reducing environmental impacts and resource
intensity, according to the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development. This pushes us to consider the climate when making
business decisions.

Considering the risks of climate change, the Group aims to formulate
a risk management system that predicts, evaluates, alleviates the
impacts of relevant events. In case of emergency, the Group will
suspend the operation and ensures the chemicals and gold-loaded
carbon are not overwhelmed. In the future, the Group will focus on
the rainwater drainage and the plant’s resilience on adverse weather.

BREEKZERARAR

REBR-Z - —FHBFENIKE 79,904,040 T °

BREBKBE BT HAKINE o

RZZE-_=Fp AEBEAERENEAKEEE -
E-—FPBRFERD10% °

RIE# 1L

T’Eﬁ?i/’\ﬁ’]*{"-? BMBEZRIIEELNE

BEEY - AEERBERIEBEMBIBETEND
%H(TCFD)E’JL%”EEWI%E%E ZEFM AT M
Bxs:BER - RE§ - EREEARERNERE -

BAMERTFEIEMEFSHE  EFTREL
RABBEERINESSEANTHERRE 23
EYa ERHCARENERRRBHORE
MAOBRRENEE &ﬁﬂfiéﬁﬁ B WREER
PMEMEBEARKAZTERERE -

RSB E BB E R IR
FENRREEYNE T E
=ZEAT  ARESEFEEE > URFR(CEmRH
ERTEAE » AR - AEBKERBEITRKEEKER
SRIHBEEBLRRANEN -

ZREBIRRE R R
¥ Ko B AR R ==

A
A
H

——#5EH%s 55



Independent Auditor’s Report
R R §E

T o

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SUCCESS DRAGON INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
BREERZERERAR

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Success
Dragon International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
59 to 127, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter.
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LOAN RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of loan receivables for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance
of loan receivables of approximately HK$46,373,000 as at 31 March
2021 is material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits with
the borrowers;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history with
the borrowers;

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

— Assessing aging of the loan receivables;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers;

— Checking subsequent settlements from the borrowers; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for loan receivables is
supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the information
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07268
Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-— —T-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ibg=s FE T FE T
Revenue & 7 175,196 91,430
Cost of sales Fiz Rl N (155,334) (62,279)
Gross profit SVl 19,862 29,151
Other gain or loss, net Hith 22 65 % 58 7 1,497 1,916
Selling and distribution costs 84 & R o B AR (2,119) (5,371)
Administrative and other operating TTHETR R A M= EH X
expenses (25,960) (34,674)
Loss from operations REREEBZEIER (6,720) (8,978)
Finance costs BE KA 8 (2,472) (2,421)
Share of loss of an associate G — M AR EE 16 (744) (456)
Loss before tax R B AT &S 18 (9,936) (11,855)
Income tax expense 8 /i = 9 (608) —
Loss for the year REEEIE 10 (10,544) (11,855)
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mE U
tems that may be reclassified to AEF I EEm o HA -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BMERIMEEEBEE
foreign operations ZEHER 59 180
Total other comprehensive income AEERBEZEMEZE
for the year, net of tax U 2% 4858 59 180
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEZHEEAHE (10,485) (11,675)
Loss per share (HK cents per share) ERE B (KRB ) (Restated)
13 (FeE7))
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARR B EER (8.91) (10.02)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M AR R R

As at 31 March 2021 A-Z-——F=H=+—H

2021 2020
g —ET-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ibg=s FE T FATT
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment LE E YR 14 4,281 4,680
Right-of-use assets PREEE 15 1,181 222
Investment in an associate R—EBERAINEE 16 3,953 4,697
Goodwill Bk 17 433 433
9,848 10,032

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 7,753 100
Trade receivables B 5 kWA 19 2,828 28
Loan receivables & W B 3R 20 46,373 40,232
Deposits and other receivables e Kk E AUk g8 21 5,215 13,184
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 22 32,304 1,629
94,473 55,173

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B S EMNRIA 23 7,762 —
Other payables and accruals HihENHIEREFSER 24 16,716 9,586
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 696 232
Amount due to a director BT ES A 26 3,506 -
Other loans HiER 27 24,642 26,065
Tax payable FERT R IR 633 —
53,955 35,883
Net current assets REBEEFE 40,518 19,290
Total assets less current liabilities ®ZEERABEE 50,366 29,322
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M AR R R

As at 31 March 2021 R-ZT-_—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —T-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ibg=s FE T FATT
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25 527 -
Other loan HihER 27 2,493 -
3,020 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 47,346 29,322
Capital and reserves EXARF#E
Share capital f% A 28 27,962 23,663
Reserves fF& &8 19,384 5,659
TOTAL EQUITY R 47,346 29,322

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 127 were #H R BSOENTE 2B EWBEMER T _—F
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on A ThBEESeH FLREENE  WHTIE

29 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: EREEE:
Approved by: U ESEHE:
DING Lei DENG Ganghui = BE=
Director Director 2 EF
BEEBERABRLAR —Z-_ZEZ-_-FEEHRSE 61



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBEHR

T4 A=+ -AILER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 e
Foreign
Investment  currency Capital
Share Share  Capital revaluation translation redemption Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RE HEBRE  ELERE
BE  ROEE EXHEE EREG 1] 1] 2itE R @
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THrT Fix FRT THT THT THT FRT
(Note a)
GETY
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFWA—A 23,663 1,327,917 12,454 (155,460) 3,054 1,190 (1,171,821) 40,997
Total comprehensive loss AFEEL2EBBRES
for the year - - - - 180 - (11,855) (11,675)
Forfeited of share options /2 U ik 12 - - (323) - - - 323 -
At 31 March 2020 and Eﬁii_ﬁﬁjﬁ:ﬂ'—ﬁ
1 April 2020 —E-TFENA—A 23,663 1,327,917 12,131 (155,460) 3,234 1,190 (1,183,353) 29,322
Total comprehensive loss ZKEJ;E@EE}E?@%Q
for the year - - - - 59 - (10,544) (10,485)
Issue of shares on placement B¢ &85 217k 15 4,299 24,210 - - - - - 28,509
Forfeited of share options % Ut B8 ik 12 = = (8,245) = = - 8,245 -
At 31 March 2021 —T-—FZfA=+-H 27,962 1,352,127 3,886 (155,460) 3,293 1,190 (1,185,652) 47,346
Notes: o
(@)  The capital reserve as at 31 March 2020 comprises (i) the fair value  (a) RZZE-_TF=-A=+—8 EARFEHEELEOIET
of the number of unexercised share options granted to directors, ARREEF - EERBHEZATEEREZHE 2
employees and consultant of the Company and (i) deemed capital AFERMEFNBAREERRERMEE ZRME
contribution arising from non-current interest-free shareholder’s loan. AE o
The capital reserve as at 31 March 2021 comprises the deemed capital RZZEZ—F=A=+—H BAXRHBERERIE
contribution arising from non-current interest-free shareholder’s loan. HESRRERMEELEZRIELE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-— —T-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 3% FE T FE T
Cash flows from operating activities REXEBABRERE
Loss before tax B B B 5 48 (9,936) (11,855)
Adjustments for: RTISBEEL AR
Depreciation of property, plant and LESNN E-Y E L-Pd
equipment e 1,388 3,743
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEEZTE 287 830
Finance costs B & AR AN 2,472 2,421
Share of loss of an associate JEE— B E A RESE 744 456
Fair value gain on other loan HERzAFEKZE - (333)
Interest income FEM A (7) M
Gain on termination of lease mIEHE W = (8) -
Loss on termination of other loan mIEEMEREE 74 —
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 1R {E & — & QA
P - (370)
Gain on bargain purchases of an associate % (8 U & — R & A 7
P - (375)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  HWERRE
equipment P - (368)
Operating cash flows before working LEEREHA 2
capital changes KERERE (4,986) (5,852)
Change in inventories FEe#g) (7,653) 149
Change in trade receivables 2 5 e W R IE # &) (2,800) 30
Change in loan receivables eI B & (6,141) (13,568)
Change in deposits and other receivables 7 & & E b & g 5k 18
BE 4,469 924
Change in trade payables BSEMNRIEE 7,762 —
Change in other payables and accruals H b JE A RUE &
[t EREY 7,185 (3,255)
Change in amount due to a director B —REEHIEEE - (159)
Cash used in operations REEKFERAZRS (2,164) (21,731)
Lease interest paid EREERNE (44) (56)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBREAZESTE (2,208) (21,787)
BEBEKRERERAT —Z-SFZ-_-FFEHSE 63



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ-_Z - —F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 3% FHET FE T
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHFRMBRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE ¥ % - # 25 M RE (2,193) (1,238)
Acquisition of an associate I kg — g 2 A A - (4,408)
Interest received [ ERIPSN 7 1
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  EENRE
plant and equipment Z SR E 1,204 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHEAZRSFE (982) (5,645)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHRERERE
Net proceeds from issuance of shares ReEREITRMDAE
upon placement RIBF R 28 28,509 -
Interest paid 255 B (322) (1,612)
Advance from a director RE—BREEZ2BR 3,506 -
Other loans raised FREEZHMER 2,386 8,865
Repayment of other loans EEEMER - (1,600)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEBRRE (247) (820)
Net cash generated from financing RMETHELEZRESTFE
activities 33,832 4,833
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekESEEEEE
cash equivalents m/CRA)FEE 30,642 (22,599)
Cash and cash equivalents REGzBEERRE
at beginning of year £HIEHE 1,629 24179
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate | [ [ & & &)~ 5/ 2 33 49
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERZEESRBESEE
year, represented by HE  UTHEAERE
Bank and cash balances RITRIB &8 32,304 1,629
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Bermuda Companies Act. The address
of the registered office of the Company is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The address of
the principal place of business of the Company is Room 903,
9/F., Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza, 14 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The shares of the
Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of the Group are provision of outsourced
business process management for electronic gaming machines
in Macau, provision of money lending services in Hong Kong
and gold-laden carbon processing business in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Further details of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statement.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 April 2020.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior
years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investments which is carried at their fair values.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
these consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4
to these consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes
in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
in the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive
income (for example, equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in
the accounting policy below. Impairment losses of goodwill
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEZ - ZE - —H#=fA=+—HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention
and financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with the investment at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure
the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
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exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised

in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation (c) HEKREZHE

The results and financial position of all the Group FMEEEER 2 EERVWBHRRAZY

entities that have a functional currency different from the EEBNMERNRARE 225 EH -

Company’s presentation currency are translated into the HIEATHARABERARARG Z2HE

Company’s presentation currency as follows: HE

()  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial 0] REUBERAKREINCE F &
position presented are translated at the date of that BEREBMERAXRNEER
statement of financial position; Tﬁ‘é%‘?

(i)  Income and expenses are translated at average iy WXIEFHERBLE (BRIEZXTF
exchange rates (unless this average is not a HEXTIIFEREBRZSERET
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect Ry ZRETECABMEFAN
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in EZBERT - Hﬂ(iﬁ?ﬁzﬁ?%&%%
which case income and expenses are translated at AZERBRE) &
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised (i) FIBEAEMMEEZERLEZEHR
in the foreign currency translation reserve. INERMEREBANER -

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the REEARER  HRERNGINERE

translation of the net investment in foreign entities and BEFELRBRE 1ﬁ§ﬁF$Z[R§§E

of borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency HRINERERZENRER - ZHE

translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such INETER - BEENEZHENEEE i??%

exchange differences are recognised in consolidated FHRERBHERELEZILDARE -

profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the W BINEBMELE 2 BERATE

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and FRIERBIINERBCEERBERE -

liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing Wi mEERRE o

rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements
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unexpired terms of the leases

HEWMEERE

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
B RERBAERME

Plant and machinery 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

TE

Electronic gaming machines and systems 20%

BETHERERGR

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to write
off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Office premises 50%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease
payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below United State Dollars (“US$”)
5,000.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
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selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 5o
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction
costs except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost; and

— Equity investments at fair
comprehensive income.

value through other
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(0

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade receivables, loan
receivables and deposits and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of that financial instrument
(“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on
that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

BREEKZERARAR

3 FEEHHEGE

THEBERESRTA

ERABEMERTARBMIIZANRIZ
MHERREEAMBRELNHSRAER
BETACZERD R -RETAREFHARA
SEEMBEMBAGRR 2 EED R GHE
saZEFAEN R ESRBENMERTHR
Rz G BURE N T3 -

BRNVFBRAFEHRAEE ZRXHRA
MR - BRI A ERA RO 8 H A A&

= °

BREASEEERFTREANSREZEER
HEEREHrEL+ @A BAEFRS
BRRBAE -

ESRHEMENSRE
BHRHMENRENSIEAFERER  H
BUEBRF B RIZ B AT E - HEMELR
AR BIIRKAENIE -

BEIE

ARRBTZEETIAREWFTEGIRE
BERTER)CK -

EFEaNWE

W HIRIB R EPIIRE TP LA KT
FIRMREE  UTEERKRE =W
M2 - EPNREEBHEEMIIRBH
HRBEE—FNEH REGUNEARER

A
A
H

——EFEEHRE 77



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to
a customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the
laws that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a ceiling of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group
is required to contribute a specific percentage of the
payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Full-time employees in Macau are members of
government managed social benefits schemes operated
by the Macau SAR government. The Macau operations
are required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
social benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the social benefits
schemes operated by the Macau SAR government is to
make the required contributions under the schemes. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contributions.
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Termination benefits (c) REBLEF
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of BEBEAINAEETNBEAERZSE
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the BRZEDN RRAEEBREHAK
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises AW PR ZAEBENURERSRA
restructuring costs and involves the payment of HE)VRFRER ©
termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non market based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair
value of the services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value
is measured at the date the Group receives the services and
is recognised as an expense.

For share options forfeited before the vesting date, the
attributable share option reserve would be credited to profit or
loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to set

off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint

control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)

the Company or of

is a member of the key management personnel of

a parent of the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or an

associate or joint venture of a

member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iif)
party.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(v)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to and assess the performance of the Group’s various
lines of business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
goodwill, investments, inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Revenue and cost of sales of electronic gaming
business

In applying critical judgements of accounting
presentation, the Directors consider that the Group
has exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with the rendering of services in which (i)
the Group has the primary responsibility for providing
the services to the customers; (i) the Group has latitude
in establishing prices and (i) the Group has to provide
minimum guarantee to casino management contractor.
Accordingly, the presentation of gross receipts from the
management of electronic gaming business of a casino is
accounted for as revenue, and the amounts allocated to
casino management contractor and the related tax and
other direct expenses is treated as cost of sales. The
Directors consider that this classification of revenue and
cost of sales provide a more relevant and appropriate
presentation of items in the consolidated financial
statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan
receivables and other receivables

The policy for provision of impairment loss of loan
receivables and deposits and other receivables of the
Group is determined by the management based on the
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of loan receivables and deposits and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Value-in-use calculations are used for assessing the
recoverable amount of these interests. These calculations
require use of judgments and estimates. Management
judgment is required for assessing impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related carrying value of interests may
not be recoverable; and (i) whether the carrying value
of the interests can be supported by the recoverable
amount. Changing the estimations used by management
in assessing impairment could materially affect the
recoverable amount used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

(c) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account of their estimated residual values.
The determination of the useful lives and residual values
involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimates, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, bank and cash
balances, other payables and other loans are disclosed in
respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in a currency that is not the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The foreign currency risk exposure of Macau and
Hong Kong entities arising from business transactions
were insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s borrowings bear interests at fixed interest
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risks.

The interest income is derived from the Group’s current
and short-term time deposits that carry interest at the
respective bank deposit rate of the banks located in
Macau and Hong Kong.

The Group’s bank deposits are short-term in nature and
the exposure of the interest rate risk is minimal and no
sensitivity to interest rate risk is presented.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
loan receivables and trade and other receivables included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2021

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

mEMBHRME

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

5 ZEEREEE

(Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERBK(E)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management BTHEERRERERE A£EEER

of the Group has delegated a team responsible for EBEZIR f%ﬁif% EETEERE =

determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other Btk EMEEIEF - MREHFN

monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is RETEABWEHEEIE - i - A

taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group ESEREREHARTSEERE S

reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade FEW K IE 2 AT Bl & 58 - LARER BE T

debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that e S EEL R MRERBE - Bt

adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable ME EFREBAEEZEERKRE
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the KR FEAR ©

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant REEZEBLRES R i%fg RiREHEH

increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing E!’JL A9 3 B 2 ) 6 W 2R A BRI A0 Al

basis throughout each reporting period by comparing the B HeREENEERRBRESRN

risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with SHREMANIERFEEERBIGN - K

the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. EEERAGEERAEERIIMNA

It considers available reasonable and supportive EHER  CEERTINER:

forwarding-looking information. Especially the following

information is used:

—  internal credit rating; - ABEEFTR:

—  external credit rating (if available); -  HNEMEEFAMmAE)

—  actual or expected significant adverse changes —  TEHIBHRERABTTEMREND
in business, financial or economic conditions that MEBREHHER - PBHLE
are expected to cause a significant change to the AR5 B B R X TR B & KT FI &
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations; &)

— actual or expected significant changes in the - [EBRALEEENERNTEHRE
operating results of the borrower; KNE &

—  significant increases in credit risk on other financial - R—2EFANEMESRITEE
instruments of the same borrower; ek Dk

—  significant changes in the expected performance — ERABHERERITANERE
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes B - BIEE R AN AR
in the payment status of borrowers. & o

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor Th B REDN ,TAE’]T,E\?U\?QHEELSO

is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual BRI EEERKR RGBS - EH

payment. A default on a financial asset is when the ?EE/ZE’\Q“’JHM | HiEF60H A X2
counterparty fails to make contractual payments within NRIB RBEMEEELD -

60 days of when they fall due.
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5

90

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due.

The Group uses two categories for loan receivables which
reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is
determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category and adjusts for forward
looking data.

(c)

5 ZEEREEE

=& =k (&)

EMEENAERMEERE (HIE
TN B R SR R [ R SRGT8)) B
3 o MEBARBIB60R K REETT
BRONR - AIXAEBEBRT S MEERE
B RS WRIR o i B R R W RO
EREME RSB (EBERAIITRAG
BRBERDABERT) & 4% 48 SR AR b
TR E U [ B B e M R OR o

AEEEAMEEROERER - I
REMEEERR R MG %S EFIETE
EREERE - FERAEEBHEX
B AEEZESEMNNBEEEX
NELATIE M BIBIEHAE -

Category Definition Loss provision

Bl E® EBERE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
% KE QRS & m R EE 1218 BB 18

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk
TR FEERBEELM

All of these loans are considered to have low risk and
under the ‘Performing’ category because they have a
low risk of default and have strong ability to meet their
obligations. No provision for loss allowance is recognised
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Lifetime expected losses
2 it A 1R

ZEERZENRREREZRE D%
M E R ABRKERBEBIEEIEH -
HE_Z-_—FR-_T-_FTF=-A=+
—BULEFEVERREBEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management will closely
monitor the cash flows generated from operations and
the Group’s needs for different types of external financing
and will negotiate for proper facilities and consider proper
means of equity financing as appropriate.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

e B WK

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

5 ZEEREEE

(d)

RBE SRR

REEBRBDESRRTE AEEHE
SRR MRS FEEANER
ERARENRAEE 2 REEBIRM
B2 RRERSRENTEZKF -
EREERTINERREXRBAEEL
BeRnERAEEYTRELIN R
BXBE UREEEEETERR
EERARE(WER) 2 @827 -

CRAJAEEERBEZHRTAY
HE - TRIDERREMEBENAEE
BEEZZERHZAMARSE
TERR - -TRERMNEERAERE
mE - MAERAZE - AIARMRS
HMEREREMR N EHRTE -

o) B
&

=

IR

=

31 March 2021

—E--—F=ZA=+—H

Total
On demand st
or within Over Undiscounted Carrying
one year 1 year cash flows amount
RER REAH
R—FR —F Nk REeERheE FESEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET FET FET
Trade payables Z 5N IA 7,762 - 7,762 7,762
Other payables and H b E B &
accruals FEET & A 16,716 - 16,716 16,716
Amount due to a director JEff—HE EHNTHE 3,506 - 3,506 3,506
Other loans HiBER 29,410 3,573 32,983 27,135
57,394 3,573 60,967 55,119
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 SHEAKMEEGE)
(Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) d) "BHESEKGE)

31 March 2020
—EZETF=HA=+—H

Total
On demand BT
or within Undiscounted Carrying
one year cash flows amount
BERHK RELIR
R—FR ReEneE FESHE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Other payables and accruals — H th &~ 7018 & fE &1 & 9,586 9,586 9,584
Other loans H B 28,190 28,190 26,065
37,776 37,776 35,649
(e) Categories of financial instruments e) ERMTEDE
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Financial assets: TRMEE"
Financial assets at amortised cost REHENATENSmMEE
(including bank and cash balances) (B1ER1TNIE S &%) 82,709 45,449
Financial liabilities: cRas:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IREE K NFEN SR EE 55,119 35,651
(f) Fair values f 2¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group’s operating segments and
their principal activities are as follows:

Outsourced — Provision of services on
business process management of electronic
management gaming equipment in Macau

Money lending
services

Provision of money lending
services in Hong Kong
Gold-laden carbon —

processing business

Provision of gold-laden carbon
processing and the sale of gold
and other precious metals in
the PRC

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

Information regarding the above segment is reported below.
(a)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment:

6

7 &b & #

HERENME -

TEEHOT:
SNHIZE TSR AR
g

A AR5

BN T ¥R

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

RBEPHRHEFEFR
& AT IR

& BB UE IR

— RABEREE M
ITURHERE R

HES B

AEB A28 7 MBI R H TR E M ERS

2 R T A
1 B 45 1 R

BB L DRz
(a) oWz

ERASEDEE B E 3 N
B 25 0B E IR o

ERHZ/MT -

REE

TRA/BAZHO MMz AEB W =R

EEDW:

For the year ended 31 March

BZ=A=t-HLEFE

Outsourced Gold-laden
business process Money lending carbon processing
management services business Total
NHEBRBER WERB HEWmMIES @it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“B--f -“T-TF -ZB--f "T-TF ZB--F “T-ZF 8- -“T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET THET TET THET TER TET TER TET
REVENUE: oz
Revenue from external RENBEP Z M=
customers 33,601 84,451 6,469 4913 135,126 2,066 175,196 91,430
RESULTS: %%
Segment (loss)/profit HEER)/HF (9,368) (4,391) 3,376 2,139 2,429 (1) (3,563) (2,253)
Interest income HEYON 7 1
Unallocated income AABEKBA 1,490 1,214
Unallocated corporate APEGERT
expenses (4,654) (8,273)
Fair value gain on other loan Ef B3z A FEME = 333
Share of loss of an associate FE{E— & AFEE (744) (456)
Finance costs BMEKAR (2,472) (2,421)
Loss before tax BREtAIEE (9,936) (11,855)
BREERERERAR —Z-—ZE--F5ERS 93
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ-_Z - —F=A=+—HItFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

(@) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (a)

There are no sales between reportable segments for both
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment
(loss)/profit represents the (loss)/profit of each segment
without allocation of interest income, finance costs and
unallocated income and expenses. This is the measure

7 &R & ()

2 Rb U R R XA ()

BE-_T-—ER-_FT-_FTE=f[=+
—BIEMEFE AI2®D HHEHE
EIEE -

=]

EBROBETERENKEE ST
R—W-DHEBER), BN BTES
#iz (E18) mFl - RSB - BE
AR ARDEWA R T OB - &
ERARNKEEETEZERREMREL

reported to the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.

TR UDEEREFEDERIR -

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) SHEERERE
2021 2020
g —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT FET
Segment assets PHEE
Outsourced business process management §h ¥ ¥ 7 i 12 & 12 4,421 12,593
Money lending services ME BR TS 49,061 40,280
Gold-laden carbon processing business HEeMmIED 11,803 1,229
Total segment assets THEEHAE 65,285 54102
Bank and cash balances RITRIR 2 48 32,304 1,629
Investment in an associate R—EBERRNIEE 3,953 4,697
Other unallocated assets HEw ko EE 2,779 4,777
Total assets EEHE 104,321 65,205
Segment liabilities PEHERE
Outsourced business process management 4h ¥ ¥ 7 i 12 & 12 9,385 1,025
Money lending services E RIS 1,235 235
Gold-laden carbon processing business HEeMmmIED 8,500 1,795
Total segment liabilities DEEERE 19,120 3,055
Other loans HiER 27,135 26,065
Other unallocated liabilities HEh kDB BE 10,720 6,763
Total liabilities =REgE 56,975 35,883

94

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEZ - ZE - —H#=fA=+—HIEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DIER(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PHEEREE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances MERSPRAR D IHHEERS B M
and allocating resources between segments: =i
— all assets are allocated to reportable segments - BR—HBEEARMKE R
other than investment in an associate, bank and TEhkREEBRERDELEER
cash balances and unallocated corporate assets; B MBEENEZEAEZHRS
and B K
— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - KBREMEREARIREGEEE
other than other loans and unallocated corporate SN FTBRAESREREZE®R D
liabilities. B o
(c) Geographical information (c) HEEH
The Group’s revenue from external customers by AEEZRMEBMNEE D2 KRBT
geographical location is detailed below: PzWsF50T -
Revenue by geographical market BHETSE 52K
2021 2020
—E=—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&ET
Hong Kong BB 6,469 4,913
Macau SR PT 33,601 84,451
The PRC s 135,126 2,066
175,196 91,430
Information about revenue from the Group’s customer FRAKEE —BRIASEEBE W HBiR
individually contributing over 10% of total revenue of the 10%MNAEEEFPFHRZERDNT :
Group is as follows:
2021 2020
—E=—F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Customer A* — Gold-laden carbon EPA — HemmIE
processing business % 5 &b
segment 97,903 2,066
Customer B* — Gold-laden carbon EXPFBY — HEik NI
processing business % 5 &b
segment 37,223 -
# Customer A and Customer B did not contribute over # HEZZ-_ZTF=A=+—RHLFE
10% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March BEEANTFEBI B8 B AL E K=

2020.

#110% A I °
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HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DIER(E)
(c) Geographical information (Continued) (c) HEER(HF)
Revenue by geographical market (Continued) B E TS E 52 W ()
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is RN ERMS W HERE
based on the location of the customers. P& -
The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location AEBZWBNBEE D ZIERBEE
are detailed below: AT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Hong Kong BB 5,601 6,806
Macau R 971 2,015
The PRC A 3,276 1,211
9,848 10,032
(d) Other segment information d HittpHER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or FrESHREFIBEID FBEERFT
loss or segment assets: AZ &5
For the year ended 31 March
BZ=B=t-HLEE
Outsourced Gold-laden
business process Money lending carbon processing
management services business Unallocated Consolidated total
PHEBRRER HERS HEMMIER KB GEAE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z8--F -R-%F ZBZ-§ -T-%F ZB--F -F-%F ZB--F -T-%F 8- —T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER TAR TER FaT TER FEL TER TAR
Addition to property, REME - BER
plant and equipment By - 22 - 10 2,193 1,206 - - 2,193 1,238
Depreciation of property, ~ 9% B&E K
plant and equipment SENE 850 3,348 - 343 101 - 437 52 1,388 3,743
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - HER
plant and equipment B 6 = (368) = - = - = - = (368)
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS,
NET

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable for
services provided and goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discounts and sales related taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income for the
year are as follows:

7

W & H B e F

WaHEAEEERERETINGEEP Z R
kEmze Wk BUKIE  HRFTMEEE
MHEATR A -

AEBZAFEN SR EMRADTNAT:

2021 2020
—E-—F BB
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FH&E T
Revenue from contracts with customers EBEEFZA W H
Provision of services on management of PR HEFEERME
electronic gaming equipment in Macau BIERH% 33,601 84,451
Provision of gold-laden carbon processing RHESRMNITER
business 135,126 2,066
168,727 86,517
Revenue from other source: Hth U 25 2R IR -
Provision of money lending services in AR M E RS
Hong Kong 6,469 4,913
175,196 91,430
BREERERERQAE —E-_TE_-FEERS 97
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HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

7 REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS, 7

NET (Continued)

W s B Ho e B AR ()

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: HEPZEHNE 2T
Outsourced Gold-laden
business carbon
process processing
management business Total
SR e
REERE T t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET
Year ended 31 March 2021: BE-_Z_-_—H=H=+-—H
LEFE:
Time of revenue recognition WHEEREH
— At a point of time - RE-BHY - 135,126 135,126
— Overtime — B 33,601 - 33,601
33,601 135,126 168,727
Year ended 31 March 2020: HEZZ-ZTF=A=+—H
IEFE:
Time of revenue recognition W 25 T R
— At a point of time - RE-KHEH - 2,066 2,066
— Overtime — BERE 84,451 - 84,451
84,451 2,066 86,517

Provision of services on management of electronic
gaming equipment in Macau

The Group provides electronic gaming equipment management

services to the customers.

Electronic gaming equipment

management services income is recognised when the electronic
gaming equipment management services are rendered and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s

acceptance of the service.

RAMRUEFEERBEEERSE

REBERE
EFEHR

54 B 2R PR 5 R DA R I A ]

PRHEEFEBEREBEEERS -
HEERBBAREHREFEHY

RErERPEK

XRBEOARBITEERER -
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REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN OR LOSS,

NET (Continued)

7

Provision of gold-laden carbon processing

business

The Group process gold-laden carbon and sales of precious
metal to the customers. Sales are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and
the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to
the customers as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due. Deposits received from customers

are recognised as contract liabilities.

mEMBHRME

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

W s B Ho e B AR ()

RUBESWMMIER

AEFREFRHATHMMIREESES
B-HERERZENREBRTERP(AE
mRXNTFEFPHTERAEEVETPEXYE
mMORBETEEREFEBEMZEEMA
) B HERR o

0 25

BURHFERERINTEPHER - B
REAEENRISAMEOERBEMR
EBRAEGRS - BEEPUBZEREHRR/A
MafE-

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Other gain or loss, net: HthZE S5

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - B NEEHE K=
equipment = 368
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate fR{EHE —KB & RN A Z Iz - 370
Gain on bargain purchases of an associate % {EUHE —KEiE A5 2 W= = 375
Fair value gain on other loan HBER 2 AFERS - 333
Interest income on bank deposits RITHE A B A 7 1
Government grant I I 468 B 89 —
Gain on termination of lease WIEHEE WS 8 —
Loss on termination of other loan BIFHMERMEIE (74) —
Sundry income HIEWA 1,467 469
1,497 1,916
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8

FINANCE COSTS

BE KA

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE&xT FET
Leases interests HERNE 44 56
Interest on other loans HEtERZFE 2,378 2,037
Imputed interest on other loans HWERZRERNB 50 328
2,472 2,421

INCOME TAX Fri8 Bt
2021 2020
—EB=-—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET

Current tax — the PRC BIEARL I8 — AP

Provision for the year IE B 608 -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at a progressive rate
from 9% to 12% on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
No provision for Macau Complementary Tax is required as the
Company’s subsidiary in Macau incurred tax losses for the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC was 25% in
both year.

Tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

HRAEERBE-_Z-_—FR-_Z_TF
ZA=ZT-RLEFELERRVOEN - @E
BIEME B MG BB -

P PIT 5 7 75 T 1R AN 6 R Al 5 R AR 1 A
REMEKI%E12%:THE - ANARA] 2R
MEARRAFEELRBEREE  WEAE
HORPIFTIS I T B4 o

BREFRCEMSRE(TEEMBHEZDRK
TEMSHEZEREN AR RPHZ
MEBARZHERMEFE B25% °

REf R AR EE 2 BB NS FARE
ZRITHEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

INCOME TAX (Continued) 9

The reconciliation between the income tax for the year and the
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is
as follows:

mEMBHRME

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

Fris®i (&)

AR E P S T B R B AT IS 1B IR A B RIS R
MR HERINT

2021 2020

—E-—& ZTZTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHE T

Loss before tax M B AT E 1B (9,936) (11,855)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of — IRZNHb P15 5 R16.5% 51 &

16.5% (2020: 16.5%) RE(ZE-ZF :16.5%) (1,639) (1,956)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries E(‘,Jrlﬂﬂii%li%ééé*zml?ﬁ

operating in other jurisdictions RATAME & 601 189

Tax effect of income not taxable BERBMBA 2R G2 (84) (65)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR AZ 2 M BE T E 445 562

Tax effect of taxes losses not recognised FHERHEE B 2R BT E 1,307 1,633
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRACAIAERZHIBEE

not recognised (22) (873)

Income tax for the year KEEFEM 608 —

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$38,642,000 (2020: HK$30,721,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit stream.

BREEKZERARAR

iR - NEEH O] AR AR R S A
Zﬂiébﬁ%%ﬂlﬁﬁiﬂass 642,000 (=2 =%
£ 130,721,000 70) B3P R 2 i ) 2RO 2
A TER M MU EERELERIEEE -

A
A
H
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ-_Z - —F=A=+—HItFE

10 LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10 REEEFE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting): AEBAFEFEENR GIA)TISE:
2021 2020
—E-—& ZEZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Depreciation of property, plant and W% WERRETE
equipment 1,388 3,743
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE 287 830
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA
(included in “cost of sales”) GTATSHE KA 131,144 2,014
Auditor’s remuneration % LR B & 980 980
Staff costs (including Directors’ BEINRABEESHMN)
remuneration):
Salaries, allowances and Fe FEUREMEYD
other benefits in kind & F 10,671 15,016
Pension scheme contributions RNE TSI 251 270
Total staff costs BT A 10,922 15,286

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HWELBREZ

equipment I &= - (368)
Cost of inventories sold includes raw materials, staff costs EETFEKRARERME  EIRARTE
and depreciation of approximately HK$131,144,000 (2020: #9131,144,00078 L (ZZE = F4F : 2,014,0007%
HK$2,014,000) which are included in the amounts disclosed L) BERIBEFA LYY HREBENSER -

separately above.
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e B WK

For the year ended 31 March 2021

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

1

(a) EEES

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BZ-_S_-F=A=t-ALEE
Salaries,

BHE-_ T —F=A=+—BHIEFE

EERTEESHFEEZHE

allowances Retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus scheme emoluments
e 28 RAKEA
we REMEF mEfRA & Meast
Notes ~ HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 TER TER TER TET TER
Executive directors: BITEE:
Mr. Ding Lei Ta&%k (i) = 500 = = 500
Mr. Liu Hu AREE (il = 95 = 11 106
Ms. Cheung Nai Yuet R®ILAZT (ix) = 415 = = 415
Mr. Zhu Tianxiang ARBARE () = 967 = = 967
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITEES:
directors:
Mr. Chong Lok Man HEEE (vili) 90 - - - 90
Mr. Deng Yougao BERELE (vi) 240 = = = 240
Ms. Wong Chi Yan ELExt (vii) 240 - = - 240
570 1,977 = 11 2,558
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-Z-ZF=-fA=1+-HLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus scheme emoluments
e 28 RN A
we REMEF MisTEA & e ast
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 3 FTET FTET FTET AT TET
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ding Lei Tank (i - 378 - - 378
Mr. Kwan Chun Wai Roy BIRERE (i - 746 94 9 849
Mr. Liu Hu BREE (il - 311 - 11 322
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITEES:
directors:
Mr. Au Kin Wah BREELE (iv) 208 - - - 208
Mr. Chi Dong Eun R T AE ) 68 - - - 68
Mr. Deng Yougao BERELE (vi) 240 - - - 240
Ms. Wong Chi Yan ELBLL (vii) 240 - - - 240
756 1,435 94 20 2,305

BREEKZERARAR
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

1

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)
Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

(ix)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Appointed as an executive director on 1 April 2018.

Appointed as an executive director on 3 July 2018 and
resigned on 20 September 2019.

Appointed as an executive director on 20 September
2019 and resigned on 11 June 2020.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
30 September 2018 and passed away on 10 February
2020.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 14 September 2017 and resigned on 20 September
2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
1 April 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
14 May 2018.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director on
8 May 2020.

Appointed as an executive director on 11 June 2020 and
resigned on 15 October 2020.

Appointed as an executive director on 11 June 2020.

HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

1

EERTEESHFEEZHE

(&)

(a)
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ExHe (#)

Mo

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

(ix)

RZZ-N\FHA-AEZERHT
B=x-

RZZE-NFLtA=ZHEZEZAH
TEFIYR-_ZE-NFAA-THE
£ -

RZE-NAFAAZTAEZERH
TEFIN-_ZT_ZTF A+ —HE
£ -

R-E—\FNLA=-TBEZTAEE
VIHTEEYR - -_TE_/F+
Bt o

R_ZE—tFNA+HREZRERE
SUEMTEREAIR_F-AFAAZ
THEHE -

WoZE-N\FUA-REZERBL
FHITES -

RZE-N\FRATMARZERS
SEHITES -

RZZEEFRANBEZETAE L
HEMITES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2021

mEMBHRME

BHE-_ T —F=A=+—BHIEFE

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 11 ESEREEBREFEECHS
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments b) SREEEMHS
Three (2020: Two) of the five highest paid individuals of AEERERRFATBE=ZR(ZZ
the Group were Directors whose emoluments are set —EF-MB)EF AEPESFIBEY
out in the above. For the year ended 31 March 2021, REX - AEEHE-ZFT-_—F=A=
the remaining two (2020: three) senior management’s T—HLEFEEHME(ZTZF:
emoluments of the Group were presented below. THR)RAEREZHME2NAT -
2021 2020
—E-—f bl S ¥
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
Salaries, allowances and other e RUREMEYMER
benefits in kind 941 1,375
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE & 845K
contributions - -
941 1,375
The emoluments fell within the following band: MeNF T35 &EE:
Number of individuals
AE
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 =8 71, 21,000,000 7T 2 3

() No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors
or the five highest paid individual as compensation of
loss of office for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
2020. And no emoluments have been paid by the Group
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group during the
two years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

BREEKZERARAR

(c) HEZZ=-_—FR=-_ZF-_TF=A=+
—HALFE AEEHERAESK RS
EEHEESXMNEMMNE - EABER
BrEE ERBE_E-—FN_F
“EE-A=+—-BAIMEEE A&
EfERNEESI AR FMALTS
NEMRBE  (EAESMBASE®ER
RINBERZES -
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

12 DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for each of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

13 LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

4106 Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss of
approximately HK$10,544,000 (2020: HK$11,855,000) for
the year attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of approximately 118,373,000
(2020: 118,314,000 (restated)) ordinary shares in
issue during the year. The weighted average number
of shares in issue has taken into account the share
consolidation completed in June 2021 (Note 37). Hence,
the comparative weighted average number of shares in
issue for the year ended 31 March 2020 was restated.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share is presented for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 as the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options would be anti-
dilutive.

HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

12 BRE

BE_Z_—FR_F-_FF=-HF=1+—H
LFERF EFVYEEZHRNEMELS -

13 BREE

(a)

(b)

BREXEBE

KARBEBEAEGHERERNERA
BEBEARGBEBAELGARAFEBD
18 #910,544,0008 T (Z T = T F:
11,855,000/ 7T) * A RAFEBEEEITYE
B 2 I HE 15 $04)118,373,000% (=
T~ T4 118,314,000 (K& £ 51))) 5t
H o DBEITRMINETHEELET R
R -—F RN AT A 5
FH37)c At BEZZETF =R =
+—BHIEFEMHE TG L& N
FHEBEETEY -

BREEER

BE_Z_-FR-_F_TF-_A=1
—RIEFE - BRITEARRA]EARITE
ZHBEREARBEZE BUEZ2T)
Bh#EEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

mEMBHRME

BE_ZT_—F=A=t—HILFE

Slie Y
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% BBERIZE
Electronic
Leasehold Furniture Office Plant and Motor gaming and
improvements and fixtures equipment machinery  vehicles systems Total
HENX BAR BAE BER EFEFER
% %B R R RE S @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FET THET TET FEL TET FET
COST: BA:
1 April 2019 —T-NFNA—H 4,206 2,481 15,760 - 188 68,779 91,414
Additions WNE - - 34 1,204 - - 1,238
Disposals HE - (50) 7 - - (8,858) (8,915)
At 31 March 2020 and RZZZZF
1 April 2020 =ZA=+-Bk
—Z-ZFWA-H 4,206 2,431 15,787 1,204 188 59,921 83,737
Additions WE = = = 2,193 = = 2,193
Disposals HE (947) (99) (104) (1,204) - (10,918)  (13,272)
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ-5=R=+-H 3,259 2,332 15,683 2,193 188 49,003 72,658
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt ERBEFKE:
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS:
1 April 2019 “Z-NFNA—-A 3,638 2,345 11,329 - 188 66,284 83,784
Provided during the year FREE 77 45 2,519 - - 1,102 3,743
Eliminated on disposals HEREHE - (49) 9) - - (8,412) (8,470)
At 31 March 2020 and RZE-ZF=A=+—H
1 April 2020 kZZ-FFWNA—-A 3,715 2,341 13,839 = 188 58,974 79,057
Provided during the year FRE 112 33 702 92 = 449 1,388
Eliminated on disposals HEREHE (947) (99) (104) - - (10,918)  (12,068)
At 31 March 2021 WZZZ—F
=R=+—-H 2,880 2,275 14,437 92 188 48,505 68,377
CARRYING AMOUNTS: RESHE:
At 31 March 2021 RZZE=Z—-5=R=+-H 379 57 1,246 2,101 - 498 4,281
At 31 March 2020 RZZZTF=A=+-H 491 90 1,948 1,204 - 947 4,680

As at 31 March 2021, the Group carried out reviews of the
recoverable amount of its property, plant and equipment as
a result of the deterioration of the market conditions and
operating performance of the Group’s outsourced business
process management segment in Macau. No impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment has been recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment
in outsourced business process management segment in
Macau have been determined on the basis of their value in
use using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value
measurements). The discount rate used was 16% (2020: 16%).

BREEKZERARAR

MR R EAREB RPN EBRIZE
BOMEERBARE AEBRR_ZT_—F

—A=ZT—BHEWE - RERREZATKE
SHEETRN BRE_T-_—F=A=+—
BIEFETERYE  HBERREEREM
BEBE(CTE-ZF ).

RSN EBREETED BN E  HED
BEZIMESENFERBBAREREE(F
—HRAFEFE)REREEET - IFERA
HBEIR KR B16% (ZEZFF : 16%) °

A
A
H
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ-_Z - —F=A=+—HItFE

15 LEASE AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 HEREAKEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEHBEEHENT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETT
At 31 March: R=A=+-—8:
Right-of-use assets CRAREEE
— Office premises — WREME 1,181 200
The maturity analysis, based on AEBHEABRRBARIE
undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s BeREMIEHE DT
lease liabilities is as follows: ™
— Less than 1 year - —FR 785 237
— Between 1 and 2 years — —EWF 547 —
1,332 237
Year ended 31 March: BE=RA=+—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENEE A
— Office premises — WREME 287 830
Lease interests HEER 44 56
Termination of lease: IEEE
Decrease of right-of-use asset due to TR E BB
termination of lease BERD 163 —
Decrease of lease liability due to RIErHEBHEE
termination of lease BERD (171) -
Gain on termination of lease AR B s (8) —
Total cash outflow for leases HMERSRLRAE 291 876
Addition of right-of-use assets ANEFREEE 1,409 —

The Group leases various office premises. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 2 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.

AEEHEEZEBRAENE - HEHHRDY
R—REER/—EME o HEEEREERE
B AR IRMGK &GS - HEHE
e MEMRZeE -  BEEEETSRIERRK
AR -
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

16 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

16 R—EBEQXTNRE

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET FET

Carrying amount BREE 3,953 4,697

As at 31 March 2021, the Group holds indirectly 24.56% (2020:
24.56%) equity interest in Maiden Faith Capital Group Limited
(the “Maiden”), which formerly known as Gold Castle Group
Limited, through its subsidiary.

Under the shareholder agreement, the Group is entitled to
appoint a director to Maiden, the Group has significant influence

over Maiden.

Place of incorporation/

WZB-—F=A=+—H AEEZFEBEMN
BRAMERBEEEASEARAAE
El A EREEMRARF)24.56% (ZF—

T 1 24.56%) B PR HE o

Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
issued ordinary interest attributable

REBRRBE AEEERZEEEN %
B AKEHECHBEATZED -

Name of company shares/paid-in capital to the Company Principal activities
EMRL/EmER BRITZER/
REER EAEAEE AARAEGREESL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
BEE CF:3
Maiden British Virgin Islands US$13,435 - 24.56% Provisions of investment advisory services,
insurance brokerage services and
advisory services on securities dealing
B 13,436% 7T - 2456% fREREBARYE  RBELRER

BREEKZERARAR
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

16

110

HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 16 R—REEBELATNKRE(E)
(continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F BB
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
At 31 March: R=ZA=+—8:
Non-current assets EMBEE 9,343 8,331
Current assets MEEE 411,289 143,825
Current liabilities mEBE (404,535) (131,628)
Non-current liabilities EMEBEE - (1,403)
Net assets EEFE 16,097 19,125
Group’s share of net assets and carrying  ANEEERE EFE N
amount of interest i EEE 3,953 4,697
Year ended 31 March: BZE=A=+—HLEE:
Revenue U & 71,761 20,854
Loss from operations RELEEBH BB (3,028) (1,855)
Loss after tax bR 1% B 1B (3,028) (1,855)
Other comprehensive income H b 2w - —
Total comprehensive loss FHEEEBEE (3,028) (1,855)

Dividends received from associates

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEZ - ZE - —H#=fA=+—HIEE

GOODWILL 17 B8
HK$'000
FET
Cost B <
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, RZZFE—-—NFWHA—A -
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 —E-FZFZA=+—8"
—EZTHFMNA-HR
—ET-_—H=A=+—H 433
Accumulated impairment losses At BEESE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, RZE—NAFMWOA—AH-
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 —TETZETF=A=+—8"
—EZEFNA—BR
—F-f=ZRA=1—H -
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2021 R-_ZE-_—F=A=+—H 433
At 31 March 2020 N\ZEZZ

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to money
lending services segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method
(level 3 fair value measurements). The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on long-term average economic growth
rate of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based
on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate of 5%.
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group’s money lending services activities is 16%.

BREEKZERARAR

ZHE=HA=+—H 433

REBAHBRBOBE REBRIEE
BERSEREGAHTESNREELEN
(REELEM) BAEZEEEIEEN
BARTS 2 & ©

ReELEUNAIORESRIERRRES
MEXGF=ZAAVEFEREREER
EeMEREREEMKAN T ERRTIH
NWEBRIRE BEEX BEEMNERK =
MWR®R - AKEMNBARKRAANTSEEE
BB RO T il B3R & B A AL A1 E LR B B
BATA R K - MERAIZBESESL
BULEEBMEBRNFHRALEER
FREE  BEENERU T ABEED
RIEBMMSERBELE -

AEERUOREHEEADREEE YL
SR L4 ) B33 B9 TR LA R 6 4 AP
HRERE%IE o KL ELFBDEETS
ZFHREEE -

AR BEREAEERIERBER 2 TBRIR
EMEZ L ER16% °
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

18

19

112

HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

INVENTORIES 18 FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE&xT F# T
Consumable and finished goods SHAEm MK G 7,753 100
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19 ESEWKIE

The Group’s trading terms with other customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

AEBBEEMEFPCEGERUEERE -
EEH N FI0BEWH - FEEFHE
BEREERE - MEP—REWERBELHN
oo ANE BB BRAS IR B E i R Uk B 2 B
M -EBHAHESRETTHRY -

2021 2020
—E_—F T FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FH T

Trade receivables B 5 MW R IE 2,828 28

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

BoORNGIBINGRBEERBREEZAHZE
BT

2021 2020

—E-—f BT

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FH T

Within 30 days 30HIA 2,828 28

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information.

AEERBEEVHHREENFOR 2/
FE BB ERTIAE A HEHE
BERETREBEERE - A/FERMER
ER BHRUFBECRAREERREH
RBHRENME BREEERTESAE
TEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

e B WK

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19 ESEWFEE)
Current Total
BN HA et
At 31 March 2021 R-B-—-F=H=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHIFEHBEE 0% 0%
Receivable amount (HK$’000) EWRE(TFERT) 2,828 2,828
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EBEEE(FTET = -
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_ZEHF=A=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate NEFHEHEEE 0% 0%
Receivable amount (HK$’000) & U R E (F %8 T) 28 28
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EiEEE (T E T - -
LOAN RECEIVABLES 20 ERER
2021 2020
—E-—f —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHE T
Loan receivables U E R 46,373 40,232

The fixed-rate loans receivables

of approximately

RIFE_—F=ZA=+—H TEBERER

HK$46,373,000 (2020: HK$40,232,000) under the Group’s
money lending services operation as at 31 March 2021
represent loan advanced to 13 (2020: 12) independent third
parties. The interest rates for the loan receivables were ranging
from 12% to 18% (2020: 12% to 18%) per annum.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all loan receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, loan receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking

%S M58 T & TE ) 2 & UE 5% 4946,373,000
BT (ZE=FF : 40,232,000 70) #5M13%
(ZZEZTF 12R)BUE = BHENER -
FERERNEMNENFR2EZBE(ZZEE
F 2B E18E) »

AEBRERBEBEMBERELENFEIR 2B
B BLPTAE W E R A2 R R R BHE
FHEEHEERE RAERMEREEHE -
FBREFCDRAREERREHE R AR
DM FHEEBRITEIAMELEER -

information.

Current Total
BN & et
At 31 March 2021 R-—ZB-—-F=H=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHIFEHBEE 0% 0%
Receivable amount (HK$’000) EWFHE(FET) 46,373 46,373
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EBEEE(FET = -
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-_EF=ZH=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHEHEEE 0% 0%
Receivable amount (HK$’000) JE U R E (F %8 T) 40,232 40,232
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BB EE (T E T - -
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

21

22

114

HE_Z-_—F=A=+—-HILFE

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BEREMEKRRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WY % MERZBEZE
plant and equipment FiE& 3,540 8,500
Deposits and prepayments & REMNRE 1,939 2,592
Deposits paid for game software EREHRERER BN
development and licenses g 30,000 30,000
35,479 41,092
Less: Impairment losses WM EE R (31,468) (31,468)
4,011 9,624
Other receivables H e SR TE 4,204 6,560
Less: Impairment losses BB S T,Ei (3,000) (3,000)
1,204 3,560
5,215 13,184

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, included in the impairment
losses of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are
individually impaired other receivables and deposits with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$34,468,000 which
are due to long outstanding and/or default of payment. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Impaired amounts were directly written off against deposits and
receivables when there was no expectation of recovering any
amount.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash balances
comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity period of three months or less. Bank
balance carried interest at market rates of 0.01% per annum
(2020: 0.01% per annum).

At the end of the reporting period, the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB were HK$973,000 (2020:
HK$616,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

22

RZEZ—FRZFZFEF=R[=+—80"

FIAHMBEUNGKIE RE RBNFRBEZRE
[E5 18 B 1E 48 45 4 49 534,468,000 7T 2 18 Rl
BEHMERRBERZS (FRRARIRK
B/ SERAHR) REBMY ERZSE
BB T RIS o &85 AUk B A A 3R

BEF - BURE B B ERN R K ERFIER
ﬁE &iﬁﬁmﬂ

RIEHR BRTRRSEHRBELAEER
BB MEARHMAAZM@ANUTZE
HSRITEN - |RITEBRILEF001IE(ZEZ
TFE EFF00IE)2MBFEFE -

RMEHR  ZEBUARBEZRITRIA
& 458 5973,0008 T (ZZEZF 4 : 616,000
BIL) c ARBH I ABINEBBTRBEINEE
A& -
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mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZEZE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HItFE

23 TRADE PAYABLES 23 E5ENRE

REBWRABE 2 BRmIXERARATE
BHENRERBEHRZREDTOAT:

The aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
reporting period, based on the date of receipt of consumables
or goods purchased, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H 6,552 —
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,210 —
7,762 —
24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24 HttEARERETER

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —T-FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Accrued expenses JEEtR X 11,209 6,004
Accrued staff cost JEEtB TR A 2,279 963
Other payables H b B 508 3,215 2,539
Other HAb 13 80
16,716 9,686
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mEMBHRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_Z-_—F=A=1t—HLEFE

25 LEASE LIABILITIES 25 HEAE
Lease Present value of
payments lease payments
HESR HENRZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F e Sl S —E-—-F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FERx FET
Within one year —FR 785 237 696 232
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~HE-EZFHFR
(BEERME) 547 - 527 N
1,332 237 1,223 232
Less: Future finance charges WARBREER (109) (5)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBBZRE 1,223 232
Less: Amount due for settlement A PM21E A A EI A
within 12 months /B8 2 5B
(shown under current GIREBEEET)
liabilties) (696) (232)
Amount due for settlement after W28 A& BB B4R
12 months #IE 527 -
At 31 March 2021, the average effective borrowing rate was RZZEZ—F=ZA=+—H0 BFEREHER

9.728% (2020: 8.991%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

MK AHIT78E(ZE-FF : 8.991F) o Fl &
DRAHBHET  WBEAEEEEATF
BEFERE

26 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 26 BEN—REEFRE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZENFBAEERR RENRARERE
demand. = o
27 OTHER LOANS 27 HWEX
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —T_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
Other Loan A HAiE A - 3,376
Other Loan B Hih BB 15,193 13,550
Other Loan C HibhEHRC 9,449 9,139
Other Loan D HEiERD 2,493 —
27,135 26,065
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27 OTHER LOANS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

mEMBHRME

BE_T_—F=-A=tHILFE

27 HtERAE)

Other Loan A (a) HMERA
As at 31 March 2020, the balance of the Other Loan A RZEZTF=-A=+—H EMER
amounted to HK$3,376,000, representing an unsecured A% 3,376,000 L IE Fth AN ¢ 5 A
and unguaranteed interest-free loan with remaining 3,500,000/8 7T 2 HEHE M R mERE B
principal amount of HK$3,500,000. The loan is borrowed B - ZERDEBRNFERRGES
form its former substantial shareholder, namely Mr. SE(BEEDER - WABERFR EE
Yong Khong Yoong Mark (“Mr. Yong”), and was carried REEKAVE - TAERFNER
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 108 - RZZE—NFNA+T—H H%
The effective interest rate applied was 10% per annum. EERARRFI L ARER B E - B
On 11 August 2019, Mr. Yong and the Company had HEMERAZERABEEIIEZE-S=
entered into a supplemental loan agreement, in which ZENAT—H - RZZEZZTFRA=
the repayment date of the Other Loan A been revised TH - B EBEARRRR BRI -
to 11 August 2020. On 30 May 2020, Mr. Yong and the BUARRRERERGEEEN ST
Company had entered a deed of waiver, pursuant to EE MR o
which the payable related to loan by the Company to Mr.
Yong be waived in entirely.
Other Loan B (b) HtERB
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company HE_Z-NF=ZA=T—HILFE "
entered into an unsecured loan agreements with an ARAREBIE=Z T EXBER
independent third party (the “Other Loan B”). Pursuant to HaE(HMERB]) - RIBEEFRBZE -
the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan is B3k 2 A4 58 /15,000,000 7T + ElE
HK$15,000,000 with fixed interest rate of 12% per annum FRERBRERENR-ZE—NF+A
and repayable on 5 December 2019. AHERE -
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the part of HE_Z-_TF=A=+—HILFE "
the Other Loan B was settled by cash amounted o HEMEFKB 1,600,000/ 7T AR
to HK$1,600,000 and the remaining balance of € (B8] # T 4 $413,400,0007% JT &
HK$13,400,000 together with outstanding interest [E 15 & 5 2 F 150,000 LE 4 -
HK$150,000 was renewed. The aggregated loan EZEEFFERI45EFENERET
amounted to HK$13,550,000 with fixed interest rate 13,550,000 T R MBI R AR T
of 14.5% per annum, is unsecured and repayable on TFENARBEE BIEEBUEER
5 September 2020. The loan extension is still under EEEMN-
negotiation.
Other Loan C (c) HfttERC
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company 2 E_TF-_A=F+—HILFE
entered into an unsecured loan agreements with an RNARIEBI B =R ERFER R
independent third party (the “Other Loan C”). Pursuant to Z(HMERC) REERHRE B
the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan is K2 A% %8 58,865,000/ T 0 EEF
HK$8,865,000 with fixed interest rate of 3.5% per annum MERIBERENR_Z_ZFHAT
and repayable on 13 May 2020. On 13 May 2020, the “HEZ W-ZE-_ZFRA+=H"
loan is extended and repayable on 13 May 2021. The ZEFHMERBHETFERRARS
loan extension is still under negotiation. T-—FRAT=AHEE - BIEEFMU
EREEBER -
BRERERERAT —s-sz--—figHs 117
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27 OTHER LOANS (continued) 27 HiER(E)
(d) Other Loan D (d HiERKD
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company HE-_Z-_—F-ZA=+—HIFE "
entered into an unsecured loan agreement with an KRR E— BB E = FR L ERE
independent third party (the “Other Loan D”). Pursuant to ERip#ETEMEFKD] - IRIBEZER
the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan is Wi - ERASEAARK2000,000
RMB2,000,000 with fixed interest rate of 5% per annum T BEEFMNEASERANR_S=Z
and repayable on 11 May 2030. FRA+—HEE-
28 SHARE CAPITAL 28 A
2021 2020
—E-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Authorised: EE
30,000,000,000 (2020: 30,000,000,000) 30,000,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZE =&
30,000,000,000/% )
BREEC.ONE Tz LR 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE:
2,796,156,547 (2020: 2,366,286,547) 2,796,156,547 i%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZZE=FF:
2,366,286,547 %)
SRMEECOIE T2 EEAR 27,962 23,663

Movement of the number of shares issued and the share capital
during the current period is as follows:

AHHECHRTROBERBRAZEESHIT :

Number of
share issued Share capital
ERITROEE [N
'000 HK$’'000
T FAT
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and R-—E—NFWMA—A-
1 April 2020 —E-EFZA=+—H
NZFTZZFMA—H 2,366,286 23,663
Issue of shares on placement (note) il & BB 1T AR 1 (PO 3) 429,870 4,299
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—H 2,796,156 27,962

Note: On 17 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing B 5
agreement and supplemental agreement, respectively, with

a placing agent in respect of the placement of 473,257,309

ordinary shares of HK$0.067 each to independent investors at

a price of HK$0.067 per share. The placement of 429,870,000

placing shares was completed on 31 March 2021, resulting

in which approximately HK$4,298,700 was credited to

share capital and the remaining balance of approximately
HK$24,210,000 (net of issuing expenses of approximately

HK$293,000) was credited to share premium.
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R-E-_—F=ZA++H ARFRIE—F
Bl & R IE 9 B RT3 BL & h ik e i et ot
WA B %5 1%0.0678 T 2 EBKEE L
& % Fig 5473,257,3090% & I% 1 {5£0.067
BTz @R - At 5429,870,000% F2 &
B —EFER_BE-_—F=A=+—0H%
A EEE AP H)4,298,7007 TTEF AR
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28 A (4E)

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEEERBAEEAUBRAEESEEBES

Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BEQgE RARESBBRLEERERERTER

maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation IR Al E &R A B o

of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity attributable REBEREEDERARGHE A B ER

to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital ERARECETRALEE EZFTFHEN

and reserves. The Directors review the capital structure on a BAARER - FRUETH 2 —HD  EFZERE

regular basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the BAARZKARAEARR - WEREUEETE

cost of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate TEAEEERER  NEB 2 BEKRE

actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The Group’s RAT ARG -

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior periods.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 29 UREEINzROERHBER

PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 2

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) RARRE—EERETE(T51E1]) - AmE

for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible REBEBZKINELER & ERSEE

participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s REEEEER GER2HEBERNEER

operations. Eligible participants include directors, full-time ZEE -2BEES SHTHABRER -

employees, senior executives and consultants of the Group. FEEZE—C—FNAZT N \HRERM

The Scheme has been adopted since 28 September 2012 and WRZZE—MNFNANBEER  BRIESTT

amended on 8 August 2014, and unless otherwise cancelled FHENER BRI EZBRTHFALRFE

or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date. B e

The maximum number of shares falling to be issued in respect RERIBF B AR 2 RITEBRELITE

of the unexercised share options currently permitted to be BATETZROEaHEEBRASEREERL

granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their EEHARRNB RN 210% « REM+=M@A

exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date HEA - RIBEFEETEREIRNE —26

of approval of the Scheme. The maximum number of shares BERSHEEZRTIROGRBE NSHBEAR

issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the NEEREEZEBEITROZ21% © #E— P

Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the BB RE - EREAEKRRERRERE

shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of kil

shares options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

The subscription price will be determined at the discretion of REEBRHEEFNEETE  ERBEABE

the Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the higher RARBIBRORBHRBPEBIMTARE

of the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock REMMBARBAZMZWTE  RORBEEE

Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock HMEHHAAAEESXBEHIFEA®RER £

Exchange on the offer date, the average of the closing prices of FrzFHRMmERRORENBH 2 EE

the shares as shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock UNBREERE) -

Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the

offer date and the nominal value of the share on the offer date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends RS T RA AREUR BRI R K

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. SLEIEEZEF -

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from WERENBE L BSRTRFHERIDAIT

the date of grant, the options expire. f# - RIS AR REBN 5 28 -
BRERERERAT —s-sz--—f2gHz 119
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29 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 29
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share options scheme was amended during the year. Before
amendment, options were forfeited if the grantee of the share
option leaves the Group. The Scheme is amended to provide
that if the grantee of a share option ceases to be an eligible
participant by reason of voluntary resignation or expiration of
his term of directorship in accordance with his contract of
employment before exercising the share option in full, he may
exercise the share option in whole or in part within a period of
six months following the date of such cessation.

There were no share options exercised during both of the year
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

LESXNZROERENRS
(%)

RER - BREBISIELER - REFTAT
BB EARABRASRE  AIBERES K
BUT e FHEICIEIERT - PART BB AR 2 &
BRAMREBITEBEERN - B BRBHEX
RREBBRANZESEHERMRIIER
BEMSEE  AARAEBKLBBENE
AEMATEZESE D B -

REBE-_BE_—FR-_B_TF=A=+—
BItMEFEREEBRERETE -

2021 2020
— sk —ETF

Weighted Weighted

Number average Number average

of share exercise of share exercise

options price options price

hn k¥ 19 N5

BREHE THEE BREZE 7B

HK$ HK$

& T BT
At beginning of the reporting 7 R & 5 1)

period 28,000,000 0.522 29,400,000 0.516

Forfeited during the year F 2 I (28,000,000) 0.522 (1,400,000) 0.415

Outstanding at the end FERBARITE

of the year = = 28,000,000 0.522
Exercisable at the end FARATTE

of the year = = 28,000,000 0.522
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29 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020

Number of options Exercise price

Exercise period

29

(&)

HEe_ - —F=-A=+—HItFE

LESXNZROERENRS

R EIREARITE 2 BRAEZITERERT

EHIEn T

=%

BB ERE TEE T&EH
HK$
BT
300,000 1.080 21 September 2015 to 21 September 2020
—hAFNAZtT—REZZTTEFNA=1+—H
7,000,000 1.286 27 October 2015 to 26 October 2020
—AF+A-t+tHE-_TE-TF+A=-+H
20,700,000 0.255 27 September 2017 to 26 September 2022
—tFENAZTEAEZE - FAAZ+XH
28,000,000

30 RESERVES

30 ##&E

(@) FAEERFRHEZBLEEPIRNEAER

(@) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements m
therein are presented in the consolidated statement REMETEREERGERREHE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and 27 -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) AQTREE

Capital
Share Capital redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R EE XA EXRORE 2itER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2019 ZT-NEMA-H 1,379,088 12,454 1,190 (1,387,568) 5,164
Total comprehensive loss for the year AFEZEEEARE - - - (403) (403)
Forfeited of share options % B B 4 - (329) - 323 -
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 W:T_ FZR=1—
“EEMA- 1,379,088 12,131 1,190 (1,387,648) 4,761
Total comprehensive loss for the year Aiiriﬁﬁﬁﬁ B - - - (10,344) (10,344)
Issue of shares on placement RERETRG 24,210 - - - 24,210
Forfeited of share options R B R R - (8,245) - 8,245 -
At 31 March 2021 W=Z--%=fA=1+-H 1,403,298 3,886 1,190 (1,389,747) 18,627
BEEBERBRAR —Z-_TE-_-F5EHE 121
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31 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31 AR KEMRREE

122 Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F BB
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET

Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W REE 988 1,329
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z"E 401 401
1,389 1,730

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A fE U T 2,716 9,330
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL B B8~ B 3R 31,798 52,883
Loan to a subsidiary m—EM B A Tf)fm 17,042 —
Bank and cash balances RITRBESEH 29,192 242
80,748 62,455
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 I E th & 3k T 5,703 6,467
Amount due to a subsidiary S — B AR A 16,777 16,779
Amount due to a director BN —REENA 3,619 -
Other loan HEMER 9,449 12,515
35,548 35,761
Net current assets RBEEFE 45,200 26,694
NET ASSETS EEFE 46,589 28,424

Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital g7 27,962 23,663
Reserves ke 18,627 4,761
TOTAL EQUITY RS 46,589 28,424
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e B WK

BHE-_ T —F=A=+—BHIEFE

32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32 BEAREKIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REmERR - REEZAZERNT
commitments:
(a) Capital commitments (a) EBEAREIE
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s capital expenditure RZZE_—F=A=+—8 A&£EH
contracted for but not provided in respect of acquisition kg%~ e R E D ETAEN E
of property, plant and equipment amounted to HREZ2EARTANTE B L(ZEZ
approximately HK$nil (31 March 2020: HK$2,296,000). TFE=ZH=+—H:2,296,000 L) °
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 BEALIXRS
(a) Transactions with related parties (a BEALXRS
There were no other related party transactions and MRiFe B mERE M EMFTRESIN
balances except for those disclosed elsewhere in the REEWEEMBEEANLTRG R -
consolidated financial statements.
(b) Key management compensation (b) E=EEEEH
The key management personnel of the Group comprise all AEBFEZEEEASRR2REER
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals. Details hEEmg AT EERAEESH
of the compensation to Directors and the five highest paid AT ZEHBFBHNGEE M BRI
individuals are included in note 11 to the consolidated 110
financial statements.
34 LITIGATIONS 34 A
(a) The Company against Mr. Cheng Chee Tock (a) AQFFHAZEBAETHEENE
Theodore (deceased) (“Mr. Cheng”), Ms. B8 #EE gt (xR HE
Leonora Yung (“Ms. Yung”) and others 2 A £
For details, background and the development of this ERNEFAZTFE BEEHER
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously BAFEZRRE  #H2BMA-Z2—T/
issued annual report since 2010/2011 and interim report ZE-—FENREMABEZFER
since 2011/2012. EREZT—— /T ZFEUKRE
AT T8 2 R B & o
There was no other development for this litigation during WIEFAR R ESHEEY EEMER -
the reporting period.
(b) The Company and Highsharp Investments (b) XAFRESHBLEBRIGDUESR
Limited, as the Plaintiffs R&A)
For details, background and the development of this ERALRBEBFRZFE BREHER
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously BAFEZRE  @#2MA-Z2—%/
issued annual report since 2010/2011 and interim report ZE-—FENARERHEZFER
since 2011/2012. ERE T —— /T EF KL
A3 2 R EASRE -
BREEBRERARAR —T_TZ-_-—-F5E#ET 123
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34 LITIGATIONS (continued) 34 R (&)

124

(b) The Company and Highsharp Investments (b) EARESHBREFRARUER
Limited, as the Plaintiffs R&AN)
There was no other development for this litigation during PLIBFA R MERMY EAMER -
the reporting period.

(c) The Company and Ace Precise International (¢) ZATEeAce Precise International
Limited, as the Plaintiffs Limited {EBFR&EA)
For details, background and the development of this ﬁ?ﬂ? ILIEF A Z 516 - jbgé{ﬂ&
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously BAFEZRE  #2MA-_Z—Z/
issued annual report since 2010/2011 and interim report —E——FELARL AT ?éZiEiﬁ
since 2011/2012. ERAE -/ CE - FENURE

AIFIE 2R HAR & -

There was no other development for this litigation during WEFARRERE T EEMBERE -
the reporting period.

(d) The Company together with former subsidiaries (d) AAREFDHAMBARFREE

Success Dragon International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

of the Company against Mr. Cheng

For details, background and the development of this
litigation in the prior years, please refer to previously
issued annual report since 2010/2011 and interim report
since 2011/2012.

ERMEFRBZFHT BREMER

BEFECLER  F2HMEA-2—T/
TE-—FENUARERTEZFER
ERE-E——/ZE - FEURE
RT3 2 P ISR E -

By the order of the Court on 31 July 2018, the Case BEEER=ZZ—/\FLtA=+—H0%
Management Summons Hearing (“CMS Hearing”) on 1 frzme —“E-N\FNA—BZEH
August 2018 was vacated and adjourned to 30 January ERERRAMA(RHEEREEREADM
2019. HUREE—T-—NF—-—R=1H-

By the order of the Court on 28 January 2019, the CMS
Hearing on 30 January 2019 was vacated and adjourned
to 10 May 2019.

REBEEER-_F-NF-A-TN\BIE
Hzwe —E-NF-A=THZE
1¢E$E{%KHAEHHX/ﬁIﬁ3f§i—7
NFRATHE-

By the order of Court on 9 May 2019, the CMS Hearing 873 5£f RZZE-NFRANBER
on 10 May 2019 was vacated and adjourned to 5 Zme  ZE ﬂiﬁﬂTLElZ "E

September 2019.

BERRABBIHREE_T—NF
AARAB -

The CMS Hearing on 5 September 2019 was vacated REZE ZEFE=ZA=1+—HILEF

and adjourned to 22 January 2020 during the year ended . ﬂﬁﬂﬂ A Z 1¢Afifﬁ

31 March 2020. RRMPHEIT R E—_T -_TF—H
—+=H-

There was no other development for this litigation during PLIEF AR MG R EEAMBER o

the reporting period.
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Nominal
value of issued

35 FEMEAF
TRIMESRATEFEAEEAFEE
ERBREABH BEFEZAARANED

Bl BEERAFHINEMMBARSEHIIR
BRILE °

RBERRZETEZMBRARFHEAT:

Percentage of equity

Place of ordinary share/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries incorporation paid-in capital to the Company Principal activities
BRITLER/ ADRER
WEAREE A 3L i B EZEAHE REEAL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# EFE3
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--F —ZT-FTH5 ZZ--F -—T-FHF
SD Advance Management Macau MOP25,000 = - 100% 100%  Provision of services
Limited on management of
electronic gaming
equipment in Macau
SD Advance Management P 25,0002 7T RRMRREFEY
Limited REERRS
Powerful Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100% - —  Provision of money lending
services in Hong Kong
BB BEBRAT £ 1,000,000 7T RERRBIERS
BEREZOR)ERRAR The PRC Nil - - 100% —  Provision of gold-laden
carbon processing
business
BEEZ(RINERAR HE z REFLHMIES

BEERERERAT -—s-sz--s5EHs 125
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36 FEREREBRMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing BMETEFREEEH
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities TRINEFANEREEZHEHNAEREE
arising from financing activities during the year: ZE)-
Total
liabilities from
Amount due Other Lease financing
to a director loans liabilities activities
ER-% METE
BEENE Hitt & X HEEHE BEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHT FET
At 1 April 2019 —NEMNA—H - 18,380 1,052 19,432
Changes in cash flows Rengd - 5,653 (876) 4,777
Non-cash changes: 3Ffﬁé“ :
— changes in fair value NEEE - (339) - (333)
— interest charged - FIBEH - 2,037 56 2,093
— imputed interest - ZEAEHY
expenses - 328 - 328
At 31 March 2020 and i e =
1 April 2020 —T-TEMA-A — 26,065 232 26,207
Changes in cash flows Reng# 3,506 2,064 (291) 5,279
Non-cash changes: R
— waiver of other loans - REEMER - (3,376) - (3,376)
— addition of — HEAREEM
lease liabilities - - 1,409 1,409
— termination of lease - KRIEHE - - A7) (171)
— loss on termination of other - RIEEMERER
loan - (74) - (74)
— interest charged - flBEH - 2,378 44 2,422
— imputed interest - AEFNEHEZ
expenses - 50 - 50
— Exchange difference - EREB - 28 - 28
At 31 March 2021 —F=Zf=+—H 3,506 27,135 1,223 31,864
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37 #H&EHI&ZE1E
Reference to the announcements of the Company dated 26 BRBARTBHAR T _—FHAZ+ X
April 2021, 13 May 2021 and 7 June 2021, The Company H 22— FhAA+=HBRZZ=—FA
proposes to implement the capital reorganisation (“Capital +tHHNRAE  ARFEEERBRASH(R
Reorganisation”) which comprises of 1) the share consolidated RNEMA]) HPFBRENVES-TREREE
of the shares of the Company on the basis of every twenty 0OTB T ARFERITRREITRAERN
issued and unissued existing share of the Company of par AHAE—RERAEBE2ETNE HFlH 2 E
value HK$0.01 each in to one consolidated share of par value EHEITHARRAROBOBRMDEH: R)FEB
HK$0.2 each; and 2) the capital reduction by the way of a THARBHERANUUEREEHTEHR
reduction of the issued share capital of the Company through a 0198 T AR BB ARG HEZHITRA
cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent BEEREETEAKRMNERSEIEE
of HK$0.19 on each of the issued Consolidated Shares so that F0.275 7T Bl R 2£0.0175 7T 89 A% AR 81 R ¢ K2.3)
the nominal or par value of each issued Consolidated Share S EREECBITAEERREITE HR
will be reduced from HK$0.2 to HK$0.01; and 3) the share MIFHE A ZTIREREECOVE LA LA
subdivision of each of authorised but issued Consolidated Share OB ODIFME - ARFERZZTZ—F <
of par value HK$0.2 into twenty Adjusted Shares of par value AEBERITRERFIANEG  RRAFHDIA
HK$0.01 each. Special general meeting of the Company had KWEFRNEFXAB  BHRRASHEMER
been held on 7 June 2021 and the Capital Reorganisation had HEEEN E2FEH BERARAFAED
been duly passed by way of poll. As all the conditions of the RZZEZ—FRXANBERK -
Capital Reorganisation have been fulfilled, the Board announced
that the proposed Capital Reorganisation became effective on
9 June 2021.
APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 38 HMAESREMB /KR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and REMBBRERN_ZTE=Z—F AT NLAEE
authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 29 June 2021. EEEHENRRET -
BRERERERAT -—T-SE--—SEgHs 127



Five-Year Financial Summary

EFUBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEEBEREMREE 2 EEUNREEREAR
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited 1 Z HiES AT B L EZU B RER AL EY
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set EH DB (WEE) - FHFWAT -

out below.

RESULTS E 3

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—®B--% ZT-TF ZT-NEF ZFT-N\F ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET TAET TAET THET

Revenue Wz 175,196 91,430 87,787 112,416 151,228
Loss before tax B A& R (9,936) (11,855) (38,898) (128,418) (159,282)
Income tax expense FERAY (608) — — — —
Loss for the year AEEEIE (10,544) (11,855) (38,898) (128,418) (159,282)
Attributable to: IATA L :

Owners of the Company VN/NETE F =N (10,544) (11,855) (38,898) (131,612) (156,179)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R - — — 3,194 (3,103)
(10,544) (11,855) (38,898) (128,418) (159,282)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—B--% CZT-TF ZT-NEF ZT-)/\F ZFTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TAT TAT FTAT FTAT

Total assets BEE 104,321 65,205 72,507 84,935 227,988
Total liabilities BEE (56,975) (35,883) (31,510) (21,376) (40,916)
Net assets EEFE 47,346 29,322 40,997 63,559 187,072
Attributable to: LATA TR :
Owners of the Company FiN/NGIES RN 47,346 29,322 40,997 63,559 190,271
Non-controlling interests FE 1 R = — - - (3,199)
47,346 29,322 40,997 63,559 187,072
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